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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD CHAIRPERSON

e 0000 | am pleased to report to KMBA's members that
/@# 11th ,_ the association delivered good results in 2017 in
Annual eneral M terms of providing microinsurance coverage and
KASAGANA-KA Mulual Benefit Assoc related services. Our membership continued to

o 2 yo0r L0019 : grow with a 9% increase from the previous year’s
i ~ @ level. That meant over 3,900 new clients for this

year, which brought the association’s total
membership at year end to more than 48,000. Its
member’s contributions, meanwhile, reached Php
33.4 million, which represented a 5% increase from
last year's figure.

The Board of Trustees is confident that with the

| new direction and tar-gets set by KMBA's
management in the coming year, the association will be able to sustain the growth
that we have seen during the previous periods. The Board commits itself anew to
support enhancement of overall performance by continuing to strengthen KMBA's
practices in terms of good corporate governance and accountability to its
stakeholders. An important aspect of such practices is regular and comprehensive
reporting on KMBA's work. In line with this, in behalf of the Board, | am happy to
present to our members and partners KMBA's 2017 Annual Report.

Isabel M. lliw-iliw
Chairperson, Board of Trustees



MESSAGE FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER

2017 was another milestone year for KMBA as
the association was able to successfully cover ifs
clients’ life and credit insurance needs, while
continuing to build its strength in terms of
operations and linkages. KMBA's staff processed
and released a total of 478 basic life and 151
credit insurance claims during the vyear,
amounting to around Php 8.1 million. In addition,
the association also covered claims involving
losses from fire, calamity and accidental deaths,
under its other insurance products.

Other key achievements for the period included
the acquisition of a 424 sgm. lot in Brgy.
Pinyahan in Quezon City — soon to be the site of
KMBA's office building, better use of our existing
KASAGANA-KA management in-formation = Wb 7N : ~
system (or MIS), and enhanced staff skills through various fraining. All of ’rhese are
expected to contribute to more efficient operations in the coming days. KMBA also
actively engaged with natfional and global network partners like Rimansi and
International Cooperative and Mutual Insurance Federation (ICMIF). On behalf of
the Management and staff, | would like to thank and congratulate the members for
these achievements. More power!

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager

4|KMBA Inc.



PART ONE. Financial and Non-Financial Performance

Our Association: Vision, Mission and Objectives

‘‘‘‘‘‘

Organized in May 2006, KMBA is a non-stock, not-for-profit organization owned and
managed by its members. It is a sister organization of the KASAGANA-KA Development
Center, Inc. (KDCI), a social development, non-government organization using
microfinance as its major strategy for empowerment and financial education. KDCI's
client-beneficiaries and staff members constitute KMBA's primary members. KMBA also
offers associate membership to client-beneficiaries of its partner microfinance
organizations and other organized sectors. KMBA's members and clients are from the
urban poor sector, majority of which are women.

Vision and Mission

During the annual review by the KMBA Board of Trustees
(BoT), in accordance with the requirements of the ASEAN
- Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS), the following

and self-sustaining mutual vision and mission statements were found to be
AR RUEREEENA  acceptable, and  were thus re-adopted by the

and appropriately responds to association’s trustees:

financial risk management

“KMBA envisions a self-reliant

KMBA envisions a self-reliant and self-sustaining mutual
SIS TIEIIIORENTTERS  benefit association that actively and appropriately
responds to financial risk management needs of poor
Filipino families. Its mission is to provide microinsurance
products and services for the poorest Filipino families.

In line with such vision and mission, KMBA further commits itself to:

» Promote basic life insurance that broadens the poor’s safety net;
» Engage in various socially-oriented activities that render some assistance to
members in terms of their security needs;
» Develop cost effective mechanisms for the delivery of microinsurance products to
the association’s targeted beneficiaries.
2017 Annual Report|5



Association’s Objectives

KMBA's Board of Trustees considered 2017 as a more fruitful year for the association.
The organization aimed to achieve the following in 2017:

» Enhanced KMBA operational capabilities through 100% utilization of an internet-
based management information system (MIS);

» Improved reach and overall stability through continued expansion of
membership by 12% by yearend, with 100% coverage of K-Coop members and
30% increased coverage of associate members;

» |Improved KMBA services, with 15,000 enrollees in K-Kalinga, 100 Kuya Jun
scholars, and 65 allocated slots for calamity assistance;

» Enhanced operational efficiency and increased investment with acquisition of
land and construction of building in Quezon City;

» Strengthened leadership competencies of KMBA's staff and BoT members by
providing at least ten (10) training opportunities.

Rl of (e Phubppenms
LCesarsmem at Snpace
INSURANCE COMMISSION
This
Plaque of Recognition

T presented to

KASAGANA - KA MUTUAL BENEFIT
ASSOCIATION, INC.

For placing ?fintﬁ@")mm

TOP TEN OVERALL INSURANCE COMPANIES
AND MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATIONS
In the 2017 ASEAN Carparate s d Anve
By the Insbtute of Corporate Directors (ICD)
Given this 26" day of January 2018 during the
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Our Products and Services

Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP)

Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP)
K-Kalinga

Calamity Assistance
Kuya Jun Scholarship Program

Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP)

This is provided to all client-beneficiaries and staff members of KDCI, as well as to
client-beneficiaries of KMBA's partner microfinance institutions and community or
basic sector groups. Members contribute Php 20 per week (Php 15 for the insurance
premium, and Php 5 for the retirement savings fund). KMBA processes benefit claims
using a 1-3-5 day target.

Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP)

This insurance coverage is offered to KMBA's parther organizations, and allows the
latter to insure its own individual borrowers or debtors for an amount equal to the loan
granted (up to a maximum of Php 200,000).

K-Kalinga

This is a personal accident insurance with fire assistance designed specifically for non-
KMBA members, made available to KMBA's associate members and to their relatives
and fellow community members who are in need of such insurance coverage. This
KMBA product is being provided in partnership with the Bankers Assurance

cx AR\ B
oy «\\m:nuq

Corporc’non (BAC)
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Calamity Assistance

Formerly implemented through SICAT — a non stock, not-for-profit aggrupation of
mutual benefit associations within the network of the RIMANSI Organization for Asia
and the Pacific, Inc. — this post-emergency housing assistance has been adopted
by KMBA is now being fully provided by the association to all insured members. A
maximum amount of Php 3,000 may be given to covered member with totally
damaged house following a natural or man-made disaster (e.g., typhoon, flooding,
earthquake, fire, tsunami, volcanic eruption, tsunami, lightning strikes, and terrorism).

Kuya Jun Scholarship Program

This scholarship program for children of KMBA members began soon after KMBA's
establishment. The program’'s hame comes from the first executive director of KDCI,
Severiano C. Marcelo Jr., who passed away in 2008. The program is open to high
school and college students. All applicants have to pass a qualifying exam, and a
background check. To keep their scholarships, high school beneficiaries should get a
grade average of 82%, while college students should obtain 2.5 or its equivalent (with
no failing marks and two grades of incomplete in their enrolled subjects).

With some financial support from the Citi Foundation, received through the RIMANSI,
KMBA reviewed and enhanced its basic life insurance pro-duct during the year to
meet members’ needs. The enhanced BLIP pro-posal provided for two (2) additional
children as dependents, and a 12-hour Motor Vehicle Accident Hospitalization
(MVAH) coverage feature. KMBA has already submitted said proposal to the
Insurance Commission and is awaiting the latter’s final approval prior to the product’s
roll out.

8|KMBA Inc.



ACCOMPLISHMENTS FOR 2017

Financial Performance

KMBA performed quite well financially in
2017 with its total premium in-creasing by
more than Php 650 thousand (or 10%) from its
2016 level of around Php 6.3 million. Total
members' contribution increased slightly by
about Php 1.4 million or 5% from that in 2016
(Php 32 million). Total assets also increased
from Php 165.09 million in 2016 to Php 188.97
(or around 14%). Total liabilities (including

“KMBA performed quite well financially in 2017
with its total premium increasing by more than

Php 650 thousand (or 10%) from its 2016
level of around Php 6.3 million.”

the 50% reserves and retirement fund or RF) however reached Php 129.88 million. This
represented a 22% increase from the previous year’s level (see Table 1 for highlights).

Table 1. Financial Highlights (2016-2017)

2016 2017 % Change
Assets 165,089,746.00 188,967,689.81 114
Liabilities (50% reserves, RF) 106,406,130.00 129,883,292.30 122
Fund balance® 58.683,616.00 59.084,397.51 11
Netincome 17,824,042.00 3,305,298.07 182
Members' contribution 32,004,443.00 33,451,458.51 15
Premium 6,297,905.00 6,947,984.28 110

* Guaranty Fund, unassigned surplus, net surplus

Membership

KMBA's membership increased for about 9% from its
2016 level. This was equal to 3,942 new members,
which brought the yearend total to 48,928. 69% of
total membership was from KMBA's sister organization
K-Coop.

Membership of seventy-three (73) individuals were
terminated during the year, which prompted KMBA
to release around Php 407 thousand (50% of equity
value and retirement savings fund including the 2%
yearly interest). About Php 321 thousand of the re-
leased amount was subsequently fransferred to the
GK Fund when fifty-eight (58) of terminated members
decided to reinvest their money. The remaining Php
85 thousand plus was withdrawn by the fifteen (15)
terminated members (see Table 3).

Table 2. KMBA members

Groups Number %
K-Coop 33,883 69
CAPS-R Inc. 12,842 26
JVOFI and other 2,203 S
groups

TOTAL 48,928 100

Table 3. Termination of membership

No. Amount

released

(Php)
Transferred to GK | 58 | 321,954.48
Fund
Withdrawn and 15 85,498.80

Total termination

73 | 407,453.28

2017 Annual Report|9




Claims

There were 478 claims during the year. This brought
the total number of claims from 2006 to 2,766.
Claims in 2017 amounted to around Php 6.72
million, increasing tfotal amount of claims since 2006
to Php 37.11 million.

Products and services

Table 4. Total claims for the year 2017

Period Number | Amount (Php)
2006-2017 2,766 37.112,725.21
2017 478 6,721,911.21

Development of KMBA's products and services contfinued in 2017 with enhancement
of existing features, increases in coverage and enrollment, and submission of

proposals for new product offerings.

= BLIP. Associate members, outside of the

Table 5. CLIP status

KASAGANA-KA network, now comprise about

31% of KMBA's total membership.  The
associatfion also submitted an enhancement

proposal for BLIP to the IC (see page 9, Our
Products and Services).

= CLIP. KMBA covered 99 thousand loans for

the year, and collected around Php 6.9
million as premium. It released around Php
1.4 million to cover a total of 151 claims. The

2014 2017
Number of 94,356 99,549
loans
Premium Php 6.25M Php 6.98M
collected
Number of 124 151
claims
Amount of Php 1.24M Php 1.41M
claims

product also maintained 100% coverage of

Table 6. Calamity assistance for 2017

K-Coop (except those under K-Kalusugan)

and CAPS-R loans.

= Calamity Assistance. The association

allocated 65 slots for claims during the year

for this post-emergency product. A total of
31 claims were processed unfil yearend,

which amounted to Php 93 thousand.

Quarter Claims Amount
1 18 51,000
2 0 0
3 5 18,000
4 8 24,000
TOTAL 31 93,000

10|KMBA Inc.




Kuya Jun Scholarship Program

HIGH SCHOOL

» Kuya Jun Scholarship Program. The association met ifs
target of having 100 scholars for 2017, by which 40
college and 60 high school students were oriented on
the program and provided with financial assistance in
the form of allowances amounting to Php 498 Flis Ciilari il ae o target
thousand. A total of 121 scholars (63 from high school of having 100 scholars for
and 58 from college) have graduated so far since 2017, by which 40 college and

KMBA started awarding such support to students in .
2007. 60 high school students were

oriented on the program and

» K-Kalinga. A total of 17,354 members were en-rolled provided with financial
for this KMBA the prOdUCT, well over the 15,000 assistance in the form of
targeted for 2017. The association also received Php
867 thousand in premium and disbursed Php 225 thou-
sand to cover 25 fire and 4 accidental death claims of
members.

allowances amounting to Php
498 thousand.”

» Sunlife Grepa (K-20). This group life insurance product
under K-Kalinga, designed for KMBA members and
implemented with Sunlife Grepa Financial, performed well in 2017 with total
enrollment reaching 71,029 individuals and total premium conftributions (Php 20 per
year) at Php 1.42 million. KMBA processed 75 claims during the period, with a total
value of Php 750 thousand (maximum payout of Php 10 thousand per claim). The
insurance covered both natural and accidental deaths of enrollees and families.

2017 Annual Report|1l



» Networks. KMBA served as an active member of the Board of Trustees of the
Microinsurance MBA Association of the Philippines (MIMAP) Inc., also known as
Rimansi Organization for Asia and the Pacific, in 2017. KMBA's general manager
sat in the Board as vice-president. Another highlight of KMBA's networking for the
year was its participation in a series of meetings and dialogues with concerned
units of the government’s Technical Education and Skills Development Authority
(TESDA) around the proposed training regulations for microinsurance employees.

KMBA's membership to the International Cooperative and Mutual Insurance
Federation (ICMIF) was approved in October 2017. The general managers of
KMBA and K-Coop attended the ICMIF biennial conference in London in 17-20
October 2017.

Other accomplishments

These included the association’s other networking efforts, regular staff activities, and
KMBA management’s inifiatives to comply with the regulations and standards of
good microinsurance practice.

Table 7. Other Activities and Outputs

January Microinsurance forum
Credit information workshop
Investment management workshop
February BoT/area coordinators’ recollection
March Enhanced SEGURO workshop
April Compliance to governance regulations:
- Filing of income tax return and audited financial
statements
- Annual statement/seriatim
- ASEAN corporate governance scorecard (ACGS)
Performance standard workshop
May KMBA Teambuilding
Governance and AMLA workshop
KMBA 11th General Assembly
Corporate governance workshop
June JVOFI product orientation
July Space management training
Monitoring visit to CAPS-R
August Fraud management manual workshop
September FGD meeting with BoT and coordinators
October Governance and AMLA workshop
ICMIF Forum
November Management forum
December HIIP operations training
KMBA Christmas party

12|KMBA Inc.




In line with the year’s target to address KMBA's data basing needs, the newly hired
database officer has adapted the existing KASAGANA-KA Management Information
System (MIS) to the association’s requirements and made the customized system fully
operational. Further enhancements and maintenance are envisioned to continue in
the coming months on the system’s accounting and other products and services
components.

In recognition of its good governance efforts during the period, KMBA was named by
the Insurance Commission as 2 overall on its list of Top Ten Insurance and Mutual
Benefit Association. Building on these gains, KMBA's plans for 2018 include the
construction of its office building, implementation of its enhanced BLIP, sustained
development of new products and services for members, contfinuing skills
enhancement for the association’s staff, and strengthening current and forging new
partnerships.

e R GET @ -‘
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PART TWO. Corporate Governance and Management

Board of Trustees and their continuing education

KMBA's by-laws formally assigns to its Board of Trustees (BoT) the responsibility of
governing, controling, and managing the affairs, funds, and property of the
association. Compliance with the principles of sound cor-porate governance starts
with the Board. The BoT exercises corporate powers and guides management of
KMBA's programs and services in accordance with such principles. Members undergo
continuing training and education to enhance their governance competencies and
thus help them perform these functions well.

Elected members of the KMBA's Board of Trustees and the lists of fraining that they
have attended:

Jerlene B. Perez
Secretary (2014-2017)

Isabel M. lliw-Illiw
President (2016-2019)

Age:.5.0 . Age: 38
Qualifications: Qualifications:

Bachelor of Science in Agriculture
(Bohol Agricultural College, 1989)
Date of first appointment: 31 May 2016
Other present corporate directorship: None

Seminars attended:

= Microinsurance Forum: Risk Protection
and Microenterprise Development
(January 2017)

» KMBA annual recollection (February
2017)

» Enhanced Performance Standards
(March 2017)

=  Focus Group Discussion on Product
Enhancement (September 2017)

Computer System Design and Programming
(AMA-CLC, 1998)

Date of first appointment: 27 June 2014
Other present corporate directorship:
Kasagana-Ka Employer-Employee
Provident Fund, Inc., KEEPFI (President)

Seminars attended:

= Parliamentary procedure(September
2016)

=  Governance and AMLA
workshop (October 2015)

=  Focus Group Discussion on Product
Enhancement (September 2017)

14| KMBA Inc.




| WMa. T;esa G. Bucad

Member-Trustee (2016—20]9) o
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Anita L. Manundo

Member-Trustee (2016-2019)

Age: 42
Qualifications:

Bachelor of Science in Accountancy
(NCBA, 1996)

Date of first appointment: 31 May 2016
Other present corporate directorship: None

Seminars attended:

Governance and AMLA workshop
(October 2017)

Microinsurance Forum: Risk Protection
and Microenterprise Development
(January 2017)

KMBA annual recollection (February
2017)

Enhanced Performance Standards
(March 2017)

Focus Group Discussion on Product
Enhancement (September 2017)

Perla F. Batingal
Independent Member-Trustee (2013-2018)

Age: 52
Qualifications:
A.B. Behavioral Science (UST, 1985)
Masters in Technology Management (UP,
2004)
Retail Franchise Management (St.
Benilde, 2004)
Date of first appointment: 27 June 2013
Other present corporate directorship:
Chams Retail (Generalmanager, 2010 to
present)
Goodyear (Branded retail manager, 2009 to
present)
TOTAL (Business development head, 2005 to
present)
JM Far East Inc.(Marketing director, 2015 to
present)
DKT Philippines (Business development
consultant)

Seminars attended:
= Governance and AMLA workshop (IC,
2014)

16| KMBA Inc.




Marilyn C. Aldave
Member-Trustee (2017-2020)

Age: 38
Qualifications:
Vocational graduate — Hotel Restaurant
Services
Date of first appointment: 31 May 2017
Other present corporate directorship: None

Seminars attended:

=  Governance and AMLA workshop
(October 2017)

=  Focus Group Discussion on Product
Enhancement (September 2017)

Elizabeth G. Fuentes
Member-Trustee (2016-2019)

Age: 59
Qualifications:
High School Graduate (Makati High
School, 1976)
Date of first appointment: 31 May 2016
Other present corporate directorship:
None

Seminars attended:

» Governance and AMLA workshop
(May 2017)

=  Focus Group Discussion on Product
Enhancement (September 2017)
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Philip Arnold P. Tuano
Independent Member-Trustee (2017-2019)

Age: 50

Quadlifications:
Ph. D., Economics (UP, 2015)
M.A. Economics (UP, 2001)
M.A. Development Economics (U.
of Sussex, 1996)
A.B. Major in Economics (AdMU,
1989)

Other present corporate directorship:
None

Seminars attended:
» Leadership training (RIMANSI,
2015)
= Parliomentary procedure
(September 2016)Focus Group
Discussion (September 2017)

Date of first appointment: 31 May 2017

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager

Age: 57
Quadlifications:
Diploma in Corporate Finance (AdMU, 2014)
Certificate in Universalizing Socio-Economic
Security for the Poor (ISS, The Hague, Netherlands,
2010)
MA Candidate, Community Development (UP,
1993)
Bachelor of Science in Social Work (ASI, 1985)
Bachelor of Agricultural Technology (FU, 1981)
Date of first appointment: 02 February 2011
Other present corporate directorship:
Mi-MBA Association of the Philippines (Board,
2017)

Seminars attended:

=  Microinsurance Forum: Risk Protection and
Microenterprise Development (January 2017)
Investment Management (January 2017)
Enhanced Performance Standards (March 2017)
Fraud Management Workshop (August 2017)
Focus Group Discussion (September 2017)
ICMIF Biennial Conference (October 2017)
HIIP Product Operations (December 2017)2017)
KMBA annual recollection (February 2017)
Enhanced Performance Standards (March 2017)
Focus Group Discussion (September 2017)
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Board Meetings

For 2017, the KMBA Board of Trustees conducted five (5) regular meetings and three
(3) special meetings. The table below summarizes the attendance of trustees for the
said eight (8) BoT meetings. Indicated also are their attendance to the association’s

annual meeting last 31 May 2017.

Table 8. Attendance of BoT members in meetings

BoT members Designatio Annual Regular Special %
n meeting meetings meetings
Isabel M. lliw-iliw President v 4 3 87.5
Marissa A. Loyola | Treasurer v 5 5 100
Jerlene B. Perez Secretary v 4 2 75
Ma. Teresa G. Member v 4 3 87.5
Bucad
Anita L. Manundo | Member v 4 3 87.5
“ > Elizabeth G. Member v 4 3 87.5
'KMBA has five (5) Fuentes
committees composed of area Marilyn C. Aldave | Member v 3 3 /9
. Philip P. Tuano IM v 3 2 62.5
coordinators and/or Board Peria F. Batingal | IM v 3 2 62.5

members of K-Coop. All
committee chairpersons are
Board members.”

Board Committees

KMBA has five (5) committees composed of Board members
and/or area coordinators. All committee chairpersons are
Board members. As per the by-laws, no Board member is
however allowed to hold more than one (1) committee
chairperson position. Within ten (10) days from its formation,
committee member select their chairperson from among
themselves. Outlined below are Board committees’
composition, and their members’ participation in committee
meetings in 2017.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of five (5) members: three (3) trustees, including the
independent trustee, and two (2) area coordinators. Members of this committee hold
no other position within KMBA during their term office. The committee provides
internal audit service, maintains complete records of its examinations and inventories,
and submits financial reports quarterly or as may be required by the BoT or general
assembly.

The 2017 Audit Committee worked closely with the management team in reviewing
and assessing KMBA's financial performance prior to the review of the independent
auditor. The committee also made the proper endorsements to the Annual General
Meeting in relation to the procurement of the 2018 external auditor.

2017 Annual Report|19



In 2017, the Audit Committee held three
(3) meetings with these agenda items:

1. Presentation and short listing of potential
audit firm and compiler;

2. Planning of internal audit processes;

3. Initial findings of the external auditor;

4, Exit meeting and presentation of the
audited financial report;

5. Selection of audit firm and compiler for
2018 financial statements.

Treasury Committee

The Treasury Committee reviews, advises,
and recommends to the BoT approval,
decision, or action on financial matters. It
is composed of five (5) members: two (2)
KMBA BoT members, two (2) KDCI trustees,

and KMBA's General Manager. The
committee held a total of four (4)
meetings in 2017 with the following

agenda tackled by members:

1. Lot acquisition for new KMBA office;

2. Pooled investments;

3. Possible placements in UITF and time
deposits;

4. Possible pull-out of
Sunlife Mutual Fund.

investment from

The Treasury Committee was active during
the year with sending updates about
investment funds to KMBA's management
through email. The updates discussed
quotations, terms, interest rates, and
spread of investments, and served as
guides to management. The committee
members were also very helpful in ensuring
that investments entered info by KMBA
were sustainable, efficient and within the
standards and regulations set forth by the
Insurance Commission (IC) for all mutual
benefit associations (MBAs) in the country.

20|KMBA Inc.

Table 9. Attendance of Audit Committee

members in meetings

Committee Designation | Meetings | % of total
member attended | meetings
Perla F. Chairperson 3 100
Batingal
Jenifer Abao Member 3 100
Lilibeth A. Member 3 100
Lagnason
Committee Designation | Meetings | % of total
member attended | meetings
Nida G. Cuizon | Member 3 100
Nida F. Member 3 100
Tagubar

Table 10. Attendance of Audit Committee
members in meetings

Committee Designation | Meetings | % of total
member attended | meetings
Isabel M. Iliw- | Chairperson 4 100
lliw
Marissa A. Member 4 100
Loyola
Silvida R. General 4 100
Antiquerra Manager
Committee Designation | Meetings | % of total
member attended | meetings
Noel P. Member (K- 4 100
Tolentino Coop)
Atty. Eduardo | Member (K- 4 100
Pangan Coop)

“The Treasury Committee reviews, advises, and

recommends to the BoT approval, decision, or

action on financial matters. ”




Product Development and Innovation
Committee

This committee is responsible for developing
new and/or additional benefit packages
and services that meet members’ needs. |t
is also tasked with enhancing existing
implementing rules and regulations, work
flow processes, and systems and procedures
(including claims settlement) related to such
products and services. The Product
Development and Innovation Committee is
composed of seven (7) members: three (3)
Board members, two (2) area coordinators,
and two (2) KDCI Board of Trustees
members. The committee held a total of
five (5) meetings in 2017, focusing on the
enhancement of the association’s products
like the BLIP and HIIP.

Through RIMANSI, KMBA was able to get
funding for the review of its products by an
actuarial.  This initiative was aimed at
enhancing the features of such products by,
for example, increasing the number of
dependents (from three to five), changing
the 24-hour eligibility for vehicle accident
hospitalization to just 12 hours, and
increasing the retirement age from 65 to 70
years old. The product review and
assessment started in October 2016 and
ended during the third quarter of 2017, with
the resulting proposal for enhancements to
be submitted to the IC for approval.

Nomination and Election Committee

KMBA's Nomination and Election Committee
formulates and implements election rules
and guidelines duly approved by the
general assembly. It is composed of five (5)
members: three (3) Board members and two
(2) area coordinators. The Nomination and
Election Committee held three (3) meetings
during the year to tackle the following;

“The product review and assessment started in
October 2016 and ended during the third

quarter of 2017, with the resulting proposal for
enhancements to be submitted to the IC for
approval.”

Table 11. Attendance of Product Development
and Innovation Committee members in meetings

Committee Designation | Meetings | % of total
member attended | meetings
Jerlene B. Perez | KEEPF GM 5 100
Ma. Teresa G. Board 5 100
Bucad member
Anita L. Board 5 100
Manundo member
Committee Designation Meetings % of total
member attended meetings
Josanie Area 5 100
Lagnason coordinator
Emily Rala Area 5 100
coordinator

Table 12. Attendance of the Nomination

and Election Committee members in meetings

Committee Designation Meetings | % of total
member attended meetings
Marilyn T. Aldave | Board member 3 100
Evangeline E. Pe oM 3 100
Josephine Abugan | AC Batasan 3 100
Lilibeth N. Molina | AC 3 100
Meycauayan
Estrelia Medel AC Camarin 3 100
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1. Meeting with potential applicants for independent Board member;
Amendment of Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, related to additional positions, roles,
and functions, and other important provisions.

The committee played a crucial role in the selection process for nominee
to KMBA's Board of Trustees(including the independent frustees) especially in terms of
ensuring increased fransparency, accountability, and members’ participation in the
process. For the counting and validation of proxy votes during the last annual general
meeting, the elections committee was able to tap KMBA's designated audit firm.

Ethics Committee

The Ethics Committee is in-charge of developing the association’s Code of
Governance and Ethical Standards to be observed by the association’s members,
officers, and employees, subject to the approval of the Board and KMBA's general
assembly. The committee is also responsible for conducting initial investigation or
inquiry upon receipt of a complaint involving illegal or unethical behavior, and submit-
ting a report to the Board together with proposed sanctions. The committee is
composed of five (5) members: three (3) Board members, and two (2) area

coordinafors. It conducted two (2)  taple 13. Attendance of Ethics Committee members

mee’rings in 2017 in order to tackle Committee member Designation Meetings % of
the following agenda items: attended | meetings

Isabel M. Iliw-iliw BoT chairperson 3 100

1. Review the Code of Ethics: Wenifreda Rodriguez AC B. Silang 3 100

. . X Leticia T. Rodriguez AC Padilla 3 100

2. Rev!ew the Anti-Fraud Manuadl; Chona B. Capayas AC Masinag 3 100

3. Review the AMLA Manual. Martiniana Mancio | AC RHS 3 100

The aforementioned reviews resulted in the finalization and approval of the updated
versions of the said documents by the KMBA Board of Trustees. The committee’s
meetings and discussion during the year also provided an opportunity for the
association to assess its performance in these areas.

Special Projects Committee

Apart from the five (5) standing committees, the KMBA Board also created a special
project committee. Composed of three (3) members of the association’s Board of
Advisers (BoA), and headed by the General Manager, the committee is tasked with

handling and organizing special events  1aple 14. Attendance in Special Projects Committee

ike the Annual General MeeTings Committee member Designation Meetings %
(AGMs)  and KMBA's  anniversary attended | ofmeetin
. . gs
celebrations. In 2Q17, the c.ommﬂr’ree Sivida R, Antiguera | GM . 100
held two (2) mee’rmgs to discuss the Chona B. Capayas BoA member 2 100
program and preparations for KMBA'S | Martiniana G. Mancio | BoA member 2 100
12th AGM and onniversory. Elizabeth N. Yayon BoA member 2 100
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Board of Adyvisers

KMBA has formed a Board of Advisers
(BoA) composed of four (4) former
presidents of the BoT and K-Coop's
General Manager, to provide timely and
relevant inputs on both financial and
programmatic concerns. In 2017, some
members of the BoA also performed
more specific tasks for KMBA'’s Board of
Trustees as members of its Special
Projects Committee (see previous
section above for details).

Board Remuneration

KMBA's work has always been about the
passion to serve and help the urban
poor especially women. Thus, members
of the BoT, Board committees, and BoA
do not receive compensation for their
services, except for actual
reimbursements of the monitoring and
transportation  expenses that they
incurred.

For 2017, KMBA released a total of Php

78,000 for reimbursements of BoT
members’ transportation expenses in
attending the Board's regular and

special meetings (see table number 15).

Members of the 2017 KMBA Board of Advisers:

Name Designation
Maria Anna De Rosas- K-Coop General
Ignacio Manager
Leficia Traquena Ex-KMBA BoT
Rodrigueez President
Wenifreda Fernandez Ex-KMBA BoT
Rodirguez President
Matiniana Gultiano Ex-KMBA BoT
Mancio President
Chona Bugarin Ex-KMBA BoT
Capayas President
Elizabeth Nepomuceno | Ex-KMBA BoT
Yayon President

Table 15. Amount reimbursed for
transportation allowance of BoT members

Board members No. of Amount
meetings | reimburse
attended d (Php)

Isabel M. lliw-iliw 7 10,500
Marissa A. Loyola 8 12,000
Ma. Teresa G. Bucad 7 10,500
Elizabeth G. Fuentes 7 10,500
Anita L. Manundo 7 10,500
Marilyn C. Aldave 6 9.000
Perla F. Batingal 5 7,500
Philip Arnold P. Tuan0 5 7,500
Total 78,000
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Other Corporate Governance Updates
Independent Trustees

The independent trustee is a person who has no connection, relationship, or position
with KMBA or its partner organizations which could, or could reasonably be perceived
to, materially interfere with the exercise of his or her responsibilities. Ms. Perla F.
Batingal has served as an independent frustee in KMBA's Board since 2013. For 2017,
the association elected a second independent member of the BoT in the person of
Mr. Philip Arnold Tuano.

Audits

In  selecting its external auditor,
KMBA fully complied with the
Insurance Commission’s Circular No.

29-2009 (or the Revised Guidelines bR LR BTG IR TR IR
on Accreditation of Auditing Firms  FERETECE T ORI T T DA A G

and External Auditors, dated 10 ERTGRT AT TN fer o S s T el

November 2009).  For 2017, the External Auditors, dated 10 November 2009).”
association’s financial statements

were audited by its approved
external auditor Roxas, Cruz, Tagle
and Co., (formerly known as the BDO Alba, Romeo, and Co.).

Total fees incurred for the auditing services amounted to One Hundred Ninety Two
Thousand Three Hundred Ninety Pesos (P192,390.00), exclusive of Value Added Tax
(VAT) and other out-of-pocket expenses.

For compiling its 2017 financial statements, KMBA has engaged the services of
Quinsay, Radam and Company. The total amount incurred for contracting such
services amounted to Fifteen Thousand Pesos (P 15,000.00).

Internal audits provide independent and objective evaluation of KMBA's financial and
operational business activities, including its corporate governance, and generate
operational efficiencies reports for submission to the board of trustees. KMBA shares
internal audit services with the Kasagana-ka Synergizing Organizations (KSO). In 2017,
the Board’s Audit Committee had initial discussions with Ms. Hazel Pamela Bonifacio,
KSO'’s Internal Audit Manager, to plan out internal audit processes and activities for
the coming periods.)
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Governance Manual and Code of Ethics

KMBA has already developed a Governance Manual which was uploaded in ifs
website. During the year, it was updated based on Board-approved policies and
other rules and regulations set forth collectively by the trustees. Updates or changes in
the association’s policies were also posted in the KMBA website and disclosed to
members during meetings.

The association also adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that is required to be
observed and complied with by all frustees, officers and employees in dealing with
members and other stakeholders within and outside KMBA. It also describes the
behavioural standards expected from a trustee so that he or she can better
understand and meet the expectations of the organization and regulators.

Included in the Code are the standards of conduct and basic principles for ensuring
the proper discharge of one’s duties and responsibilities, such as not using one’s
position to make profit or to acquire benefit or advantage, avoiding situations that
com-promise one's impartiality, maintaining professional integrity, and enhancing skills,
knowledge, and understanding of the association’s operations and related activities.
Under the Code, KMBA officers and employees are also expected to maintain
transparency at all times and be accountable for their actions, decisions, and various
engagements.

Risk management

As part of effective management efforts, KMBA's Risk Management Policy provides
guidelines to the Board of Trustees, officers and management staff in properly
addressing risks before these affect the association’s operations. The Board of Trustees
regularly reviews and assesses the risks that KMBA faces in all areas of work and plan
for the management of suchrisks. These include the following:

Liquidity risk

This refers to the risk that the association will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as this fall due, basically from lack of funding to finance its growth and
capital expenditures and requirements.

The association’s approach to manage its liquidity profile is to ensure that adequate
funding is available at all times to meet commitments as these arise without incurring
unnecessary costs, and to be able to access funding when needed. The Board and
management work closely to manage this risk.
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Credit risk

This involves the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. In the case of KMBA, its
receivable balances are care-fully monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that its
exposure to impairment is not significant.

Member credit risk is managed by analysing the credit risk for each new member
before standard payment and appropriate delivery terms and conditions are offered.
Outstanding receivables are regularly monitored. The credit quality of the
association’s financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is considered to
be good quality and expected to be collectible without any credit losses.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by ensuring that deposit
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counterparties.

The association’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of other counterparties,
with a maximum exposure that is equal to the carrying amounts outlined in the table
below:

Table 16. Carrying amounts

2015 2016 2017
Cash in bank 43,960,526 59,953,300 62,529,821
Receivables 2,747,379 3,828,671 4,860,036
Financial assets available for sale 15,615,901 15,393,796 15,590,740
Held to maturity investment 75,678,336 86,678,366 86,678,366
Total 138,002,172 162,854,133 169,658,963

The credit quality of the association’s financial assets is evaluated using internal credit
rating. Financial assets are considered as high grade if the counterparties are not
expected to default in settling their obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal.
These counterparties include banks, related parties and members who pay on or
before the due date. KMBA's bases in grading its financial assets are as follows:

High grade. These are receivables which have a high probability of collection (the
counterparty has the apparent ability to satisfy its obliga-tion and the security on the
receivables are readily enforceable).

Standard. These are receivables where collection is probable due to the reputation
and the financial ability of the counterparty to pay, but which have been outstanding
for a certain period of fime.

Substandard. Receivables that can be collected provided KMBA makes persistent
effort to collect them.
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Compliance Risk

Compliance risk arise from violations or non-conformity to laws, rules and regulations,
circulars, and prescribed practices of the Insurance Commission and other regulatory
bodies that may expose KMBA to fines and penal-ties by these regulatory bodies. To
properly address these risks, the association’s management staffs ensure KMBA's full
compliance to its Manual of Corporate Governance and other relevant compliance
policies.

Financial Performance Indicators

KMBA fully complied with the financial policies of the Insurance Commission, including
those which require that administrative costs should not exceed twenty (20) percent
of the association’s total gross revenue. It also complies with the high ratio in Risk
Based Capital (RBC) framework requirement.

From 19.5% in 2016, KMBA's KMBA's operating expenses in 2017 increased a little to
around 20.5% of its gross premium collection. Meanwhile, the association’s RBC ratio
during the year stood at around 914%.

Non-financial Performance Indicators

KMBA consistently met its goal of providing claims settlements within 24 hours upon
receipt of complete documents. The Microinsurance MBA Association of the
Philippines, Inc. (MIMAP) ranked KMBA No. 1 in terms of compliance with the 24-hour
claim settlement policy. This shows the association’s dedication to providing efficient
services, ensuring that members and their families receive claims at the time when
they need it most.

Policy on Dividends

KMBA does not declare dividends to members. Its income goes directly to members’
benefits through an in-crease in the guaranty fund. In compliance with the Insurance
Code, KMBA refunds 50 percent of members’ premium contributions when they
withdraw membership. KMBA also releases 100 percent of members’ accumulated
retirement savings upon reaching exit age or upon withdrawal of membership.
Benefits could also be in the form of product reinsurance, scholarships and other
financial assistance to those affected by calamities.

Supplier

KMBA has a policy that covers the selection, bidding, and approval process for the
selection of suppliers. The association takes into account the following factors in
assessing and selecting its suppliers: a) cost; b) quality of service; c) efficiency; and, d)
relationship of the supplier to the association. The said policy also prohibits
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transactions involving solicitation, and directly or indirectly accepting gifts, commission
and other forms of payment from members, suppliers and other parties in exchange
for any favourable treatment. The KMBA General Manager, Ms. Silvida Reyes-
Anfiquera (Phone/Fax: (632) 990-7915; Email: sreyes_antiquera@yahoo.com), is the
person-in-charge and leads the processes for selection, bidding and approval of
suppliers.

Related Party Transaction

KMBA adopted and started enforcing during the year a policy to disclose related party
transactions between KMBA and any of its partner organizations and related “party”.
Related party includes: (a) Members of KMBA's Board of Trustees, sister organization
KDCI, K-Coop and partner organizations; (b) KMBA's General Manager and key
officers, including anyone who directly reports to the Board of Trustees; and (c) Any
person whose judgement or decisions could be influenced as a consequence of an
arrangement or relationship between or involving themselves and any person
mentioned above.

Environment-friendly Value Chain

KMBA ensured that environmental and social consciousness was incorporated in the
day-to-day operations of the association. This was for the benefit of all stakeholders,
employees and community members.

The association also continued to implement initiatives to support its advocacy on
environmental awareness and sustainable development by implementing a “reduce,
reuse, recycle” policy for its office supplies.

Protecting the Whistle Blower

In 2017, KMBA conducted information dissemination among its officers, employees,
and members with regard to its adopted policy on the protection of whistle-blowers.
The policy involved maintaining confidentiality with regard to the identity and
disclosures of the whistleblower, validating the latter’'s claims and reports of any illegal
or corrupt practices, and providing protection to whistle-blowers from retaliation or
harassment.

Retaliation and Harassment

KMBA commits to protect those who report in good faith from retaliation, harassment
and other forms of threat. KMBA ensure that necessary action will be strictly enforced.

KMBA will then confirm and validate if the report is made in good faith. However, if the
report is done with malicious intent, for personal gain or bias, or based on false or
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misleading information, the whistle blower may lose his/her protection and KMBA may
decide to impose a disciplinary action against the whistle blower.

Handling of Complaints

KMBA still has to have a formal policy with regard to accepting complaints on illegal
and unethical behaviour. The Board and management staff had inifial discussions on
this concern during the year, and decided to include the drafting of such a policy in its
list of priorities for the coming period.

For complaints against KMBA employees or members related to its value chain, the
President of the association has been authorized to receive the complaints. Submission
of complaints may be in confidence or anonymous. Below is the KMBA President’s
contact information:

Isabel M. lliw-lliw

President, KMBA

Landline: 990-7915

Mobile: 0930-0111167

Email: isabeliliwiliw@gmail.com

Management Team

\ .
W Kﬁg. 7ILA
© dnnual General Meeting

Y KASAGANA KA Mutual Benetlt Associalion, Ine,

The overall responsibility for the day-to-day operations of KMBA rests on the General
Manager. As head of the management team, the general manager provides general
directions, supervision, management, and administrative control on all the operating
units subject to such limitations as set forth by the Board of Trustees or the General
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Assembly. In addition to the GM, eight (8) full-time members comprise the
management team.

Key officers and Employees’ Capacity Building and Development

KMBA sends its key officers and employees to fraining and seminars, and organizes its
own capacity-building activities for its staff to ensure their continuous growth in terms of
individual competencies. In 2017, several KMBA staff members participated in various
training activities:

Table 17. Training attended by KMBA staff in 2017

Date and venue

24 January 2017
Diamond Hotel
Manila

24 January 2017
Diamond Hotel
Manila

20-26 January 2017
Bayview Park Hotel
Manila

31 January 2017
Diaomond Hotel
Manila

6 March 2017
KL Tower Ortigas
Center

24-26 May 2017
Hotel Benilde
Malate, Manila

20 July 2017
Corinthian Executive
Regency, Pasig City

21 August 2017
Soleste Suites
Quezon City

25-27 October 2017
Hotel Benilde
Malate, Manila

30| KMBA Inc.

Topic

Microinsurance Forum:
Risk Protection and
Micro-enterprise
Development for a
Resilient Nation

CIC: Technical
Compliance Workshop

Mi-MBA Investment
Management Workshop

Capacity Building for
Microinsurance Project
Culminating Program

Enhanced SEGURO
Workshop

Governance and AMLA
Workshop

Space Management
Training

Anti-Fraud Management
Workshop

Governance and AMLA
Workshop

Participant

Evangeline E. Pe
(Operations Manager)

Analyn A. Shih
(Executive Assistant)
Aljohn L. Laureano
(MIS Officer)

Silvida R. Anfiquera
(General Manager)
Evelyn A. Lagmay

(Finance Manager)

Evangeline E. Pe
(Operations Manager)
Adrian P. San Andres
(Finance Manager)

Evelyn A. Lagmay
(Finance Manager)
Analyn A. Shih
(Executive Assistant)

Ma. Teresa G. Bucad
(Board member)
Elizabeth G. Fuentes
(Board member)
Mcquen R. Abellano
(Accounts Officer)

Evangeline E. Pe
(Operations Manager)
Analyn A. Shih
(Executive Assistant)

Silvida R. Antiquera
(General Manager)
Evangeline E. Pe
(Operations Manager)

Anita L. Manundo
Marilyn C. Aldave
(Board members)




HIIP Product Orientation
and Training

6 December 2017
MyHouse, KDCI
Office, Don Enrique
Heights, Holy Spirit
Quezon City

Aljohn L. Laureano
(MIS Officer)
Diobert . Calanza
(Accounts Officer)

Silvida R. Antiquera
(General Manager)
Evangeline E. Pe
(Operations Manager)
Evelyn A. Lagmay

(Finance Manager)
Analyn A. Shih
(Executive Assistant)
Diobert . Calanza
Adrian P. San Andres
Mcquen R. Abellano
Richard L. Monteron
(Accounts Officers)
Aljohn L. Laureano
(MIS Officer)

KMBA Management Team Contact Information
Evangeline E. Pe
Operations Manager

) Mobile no: 639088197715
vangiepe@yahoo.com.ph

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager, KMBA
Tel/Fax: (632) 990-7915
sreyes_antiguera@yahoo.com

Analyn A. Shih
Executive Assistant
Mobile no: 639256505950
: analynamalio@gmail.com
Diobert F. Calanza Aljon L. Laureano
Account Officer MIS Officer
Mobile no: 639178086771 Mobile no: 639452172482
diobertcalanza@yahoo.com laureanoaljopn0392@gmail.com

Richard L. Monteron
Account Officer

Mobile no: 63969298007
rmonteron21@gmail.com

Evelyn A. Lagmay
Finance Manager
j Mobile no: 639087440393
: evelyn.aban27@gmail.com
Adrian P. San Andres
Account Officer
Mobile no: 639428014505
adriansanandres08@gmail.com
McQuen R. Abellano
Account Officer
Mobile no: 09214745447
mcquenabellano1430@gmail.com
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Commitment to Good Governance

The Board of Trustees and Management Team of KMBA is committed to the principles
and best practices contained in the KMBA's Manual on Corporate Good
Governance, association By-laws, and Articles of Incorporation. The Board and
Management will remain transparent and accountable to its members and shall
govern and manage with integrity. It shall ensure checks and balances are set in
place and that its operation is participative and rights-based.

The association is committed to adhering to this principles and practices, and
acknowledge that these will serve as guide in the attainment of the association’s
vision and mission.

The Board of Trustees together with the General Manager shall closely monitor
implementation on the Code of Corporate Governance.

Board Policy Review

As part of its commitment to the implementation of Good Corporate Governance,
the Board reviewed the association’s vision, mission and corporate goals. The Board
did not see the need to revise the VMG since they are still to be achieved and likewise
relevant to the changing industry environment. The programs and services are still
aligned with the VMG. Other policies shall be reviewed and evaluated by the Board
in 2018 to assess its implementation and respond to policy gaps. The Board is very
much committed to the improvement of the Governance and management of the
association.
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PART THREE. Audited Financial Report

IBDO Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co. 4805 Ayal Averue, Mt CRy V126 Pippies

Tel: +{632) 844 2016
Fax: +(632) 844 2045

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Members and the Board of Trustees

Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

#5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights
Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spirit, Quezon City

We have audited the financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Non-stock, Non-profit Organization) (the Association), for the year ended December 31, 2017
on which we have rendered the attached report dated April 10, 2018.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations No. V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is
related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or Board of Trustees of the
Association.

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO.
(FORMERLY ALBA ROMEO & CO. CPAs)

%oﬂ-)
Leticia C. Tagl
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0017358
Tax Identification No. 123-048-280
PTR No. 6643556, issued on January 17, 2018, Makati City
BOA/PRC Registration No. 0005, issued on December 1, 2015,
effective until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1583-A (Individual), Group A, issued on September 6, 2016,
effective until September 6, 2019
SEC Accreditation No. 0007-FR-4 (Firm), Group A, issued on July 16, 2015,
effective until July 15, 2018
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-6-2018, issued on January 26, 2018,
effective until January 25, 2021
BSP-Registered as external auditor under Category A- January 5, 2018 to January 5, 2019
Insurance Commission Accreditation No. SP-2017-011R, effective until August 26, 2020

April 10, 2018
Makati City, Philippines
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QUINSAY, RADAM AND CO. “Surpassing

« Audit » Tax = Consulting Expectations”

CERTIFICATE ON THE COMPILATION SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To Management of

KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

(Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

#5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights Commonwealth Avenue,
Brgy. Holy Spirit, QuezonCity

We have compiled the accompanying financial statements of KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT
ASSOCIATION, INC. based on information you have provided. These financial statements
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and 201 6, statements
comprehensive income, statements of changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows
for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standard on Related
Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements.

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the
preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards. We have complied with relevant ethical requirements, including
principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care. These financial
statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to compile them are
your responsibility.

We have not verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to compile
these financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or a review
conclusion on whether these financial statements are prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards.

QUINSAY, RADAM AND CO.

TIN 007-894-264-000

BOA Accreditation No. 6006 effective until August 6, 2020

BIR Accreditation No. 08-006419-000-2016 issued on March 21, 2016 effective until March 20, 2019

By

JOSHPH E. QUINSAY

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 118911

PTR No. 5832577 issued on January 4, 2018 at Pasay City

TIN 304-239-540-000

BIR Accreditation No. 08-006419-001-2017 issued on August 7, 2017 effective until August 6, 2020

April 10, 2018
1971 F.B. Harrison St., District 1, Pasay City
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KASAGANA-KA
Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of Kasagana Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. is responsible for all information
and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Retum for the year ended December 31,
2017. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in the
financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
period. Furthermore, the management is responsible for all information and representations
contained in all the other tax retums filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the
Value-Added Tax and/or percentage tax retumns, withholding tax returns, documentary stamp tax
returns, and any and all other tax retumns.

In this regard, the management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with
the books and records of the Association, complete and correct in all material respects. Management
likewise affirms that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Retumn has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax
retum pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained in the Association’s books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances; and

(c) the Association has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required to be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions
shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those

contested in good faith.
./V.:L.Ar— /'Z:«;) ,u/é/-v - -“4")
ISABEL ILIW-ILIW ISABEL ILIW-ILIW
Chairman of the Board President
MO\
MARISSA LOYOLA
Treasurer
Signed this__ ' dayof_ PN 018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members and the Board of Trustees

Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

#5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights 479
Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spirit, Quezon City

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit
Association, Inc. (A Non-stock, Non-profit Organization) (the Association), which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for
the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Association as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its financial performance and
fts cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines
(the Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with PFRS and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Parent
Association's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Parent Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative to do
s0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial
preparation process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that include our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit is conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.



Report on the Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO.
(FORMERLY ALBA ROMEO & CO., CPAs)

Leticia C. Tagle S

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0017358
Tax Identification No. 123-048-280
PTR No. 6643556, issued on January 17, 2018, Makati City
BOA/PRC Registration No. 0005, issued on December 1, 2015,
effective until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1583-A (Individual), Group A, issued on September 6, 2016,
effective until September 6, 2019
SEC Accreditation No. 0007-FR-4 (Firm), Group A, issued on July 16, 2015,
effective until July 15, 2018
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-6-2018, issued on January 26, 2018,
effective until January 25, 2021
BSP-Registered as external auditor under Category A- January 5, 2018 to January 5, 2019
Insurance Commission Accreditation No. SP-2017-011R, effective until August 26, 2020

April 10, 2018
Makati City, Philippines



KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFTT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(a Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
Note 2017 20%5

ASSETS
Cutrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P62,529,821 P56,953,300
Recetvables 7 4,860,036 3,828,671
Other current assets 8 218,248 340,429

Total current assets 67,608,105 61,122,400
Noncurrent assets
Avaitable-for-sale financial assets 9 15,590,740 15,393,796
Held-to-maturity investments 10 86,678,366 86,678,366
Advances to contractor 1 - 1,219,366
Property and equipment, net 12 18,147,794 422,412
Intangible asset 13 1,209,732 .
Other noncurrent assets 14 262,501 253,406

Total noncurrent assets 121,889,133 103,967,346

Total assets P189,497,238 P165,089,746
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE APR 5 & 0
Current liabilities =i
Trade and other payabies 15 P1,083,773 P947,821
Liability on individual equity value- 16 4,064,147 3,922,456
Aggregate reserve for trust liability ' —~— 16 6,865,887 6,854,684
Bagic contingent benefit reserve 16 288,711 200,509
Optional benefit reserve 16 824,479 748,406
Claims payable on basic contingent benefit 17 389,909 486,273

Total current liabilities 13,516,906 13,160,149
Noncurrent labilities
Liability on individual equity value 16 68,074,847 63,381,945
Aggregate reserve for trust liability 16 36,198,289 29,275,505
Retirement benefit obligation 20 823,244 588,531

Total noncurrent labilities 105,096,380 93,245,981

Total liabilities 118,613,286 106,406,130
FUND BALANCE
Restricted balance 18 35,111,526 22,977,037
Unrestricted balance 18 35,772,426 35,706,579

Total fund balance 70,883,952 58,683,616

Total labilities and fund balance P189,497,238 P165,089,746

{The notes on pages 5 to 47 are integral part of these financial statements. )




KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC,
(a Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Note 2017 2016

Revenue 21 P41,346,878 P39,770,564
Benefit expenses
Allocation for liability on individual equity (12,982,861) (12,394,537)
Benefit/claims expenses - BLIP (6,721,911) (6,951,019)
Benefit/claims expenses - Equity value (3,744,638) (3,648,112)
Benefit/claims expenses - CLIP (1,405,665) (1,390,000)
Collection fees (3,872,889) (1,109,150)
Other expenses for members (2,121,548) (866,724)
Increase/decrease in aggregate reserve for trust lability (786,748) (657,867)
Increase/decrease in reserve for basic contingent fund 7,423 (253,545)
Increase/decrease in (fability on individual equity 8,112,030 8,995,303
Increase/decrease in reserve for optional benefit (75,514) 15,262

Total benefit expense (23,592,321) (18,260,389)
Revenue before operating expense 17,754,557 21,510,175
Operating expenses 2 (8,491,024) (7,963,418)
Revenue from operations 9,263,533 13,546,757
Finance income 6,9,10 4,691,796 4,420,930
Net revenue 13,955,329 17,967,687
Other comprehesive income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Unrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial assets 3 196,944 (222,105)

Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit obligation 20 (15,988) 78,460
Other comprehesive income (loss) for the year 180,956 (143,645)
Total comprehensive income P14,136,285 P17,824,042

(The notes on pages 5 to 47 are integral part of these financial statements.)
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC,
(a Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Note 2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Net revenue P13,955,329 P17,967,687
Adjustments for:

Increase in labiity on individual equity value 4,834,593 3,385,792

Increase in aggregate reserve for trust lisbitity 6,933,987 6,064,024

Depreciation 17,2 303,216 327,595

Retirement benefit cost 0,22 218,725 201,048

Amortization 13,22 122,083 .

Finance income 6,9,10 (4,691,796) 14,420,930)

Galn on sele of equipments 12 - (3,609)
Operating profit before working capital changes 21,676,137 14,071,791
(Increase) decrease in:

Recelvables (538,863) (578,824)

Other current assets 122,181 (167,155)
Increase (decrease) in:

Trade and ather payables 135,952 617,789

Basic contingent benefit reserve 88,202 36,006

Optional benefit reserve 76,073 (15,262)

Clafrms payable on basie contingent benefit (96,364) 218,098
Cash generated from aperations 21,463,318 14,182,443
Finance income received 4,199,294 3,918,462
Net cash provided by operating activities 25,662,612 18,100,905
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and eguipment 12 (18,028,598) (261,908)
Acquisition of intangible asset 13 (112,449) .
Increase in other noncurrent assets 14 (9,095) (253,406)
Acquisition of held-to-maturity investment 10 B (11,000,000)
Advances to contractor un - {1,219,366)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 12 - 6,053
Net cash used in investing activities (18,150,142) (12,728,627)
Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in fund balance (1,935,949) (1,670,024)
Payment of retirement liability 0 - {160,2%9%)
Net cash used In financing activities (1,935,949) (1,830,320)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,576,521 12,992,774
Cash and cash equivalents

January 1 56,953,300 43,960,526

Docember 31 6 P62,529,821 P56,953,300
Non-cash transaction
Reclassification to computer software 1,219,366 .
Reclassification from advances to contractors (P1,219,366) .
Total P- P-

(The notes on pages 5 to 47 are integrat part of these financial statements.)




KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(a Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1- GENERAL INFORMATION

Kasagana-ka Mutual Benefit Association Inc. (the Association) was organized and incorporated
under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines and registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on June 29, 2006 per SEC Registration Number CN200610153. The Association
is primarily engaged to promote the welfare of the poor; to extend financial assistance to its
members in the form of death benefit, medical subsidy, pension and loan redemption assistance;
and to ensure continued access to benefits and resources by actively involving the members in
the direct management of the Association that will include implementation of policies and
procedures geared towards sustainability and improved services.

The Association is a non-stock, non-profit entity that no part of the income, which the Association
may obtain as an incident to its operations, shall be distributed as dividends to its members,
trustees or officers subject to the provisions of the Corporation Code on dissolution. Any profit
obtained by the Association as a result of its operations, whenever necessary or proper shall be
used for the furtherance of its purpose.

The Association’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is located
at #5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spirit, Quezon
City.

1.1 Approval of financial statements

The financfal statements of the Association have been approved and authorized for issuance by
the Board of Trustees (BOT) on April 10, 2018. The Association’s General Manager, Silvida
Antiquera was authorized by the BOT to sign for and on behalf of the BOT, to approve and cause
the submission of the audited financial statements.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Association’s financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to the years
presented, unless otherwise stated,

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, and
adopted by SEC.

The SEC fssued a notice on October 11, 2010 allowing SMEs exemption from the mandatory
adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (PFRS
for SMEs). Based on the exception criteria that it is a holder of a secondary license issued by
regulatory agencies, the Association elected to adopt the full PFRS framework.



Basis of measurement and presentation

The Association’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which have been measured at fair value,

Functional currency

The financial statements are prepared in Philippine Peso (P), which is the Association's functional
and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise
stated.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Association’s management to exercise judgment
in applying the Association’s accounting policies. The areas where significant judgments and
estimates have been made in preparing the Association’s financial statements and their effects
are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
a. New standards and amendments issued and effective from January 1, 2017.

The following amendments became mandatory in the current year. The amendments generally
require full retrospective application, with some amendments requiring prospective application.

* Amendments to PAS 7, Disclosure Initiative: The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

* Amendments to PAS 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses: The
amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of deductible temporary
difference related to unrealized losses. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on
how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

b. New standards, amendments ad interpretation existing standards issued but not yet
effective and with mandatory adoptions for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017.

The Association has not applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
that has been issued but are not yet effective:

* PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
was issued. The final version reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and
replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous
versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 Is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early,
application permitted. Retrospective application is required but comparative information is
not compulsory.

The actual impact of adopting PFRS 9 on the Association's financial statements is not known
and cannot be reliably estimated because it will be dependent on the financial instruments
that the Association holds and the economic conditions at that time, as well as judgments
that the Association will make in the future. The new standard will require the Association to
revise its accounting processes and internal controls related to reporting financial instruments
and these changes are not yet complete.



» PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. PFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
PFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including PAS 18, Revenue,
PAS 11, Construction Contracts, and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.
The core principle of PFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the PFRS 15 introduces a five-step model approach to revenue recognition:

a) Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

b) Step 2: identify the performance obligations in the contract

) Step 3: Determine the transaction price

d) Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
) Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under PFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when "control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
PFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
PFRS 15.

In April 2016, the IASB issued clarifications to PFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The new standard allows for a full retrospective application, or prospective application with
additional disclosure. PFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early adoption permitted.

Apart from providing more extensive disclosures on the Association’s revenue recognition and
transactions, the Association does not anticipate a significant impact on the financial
statements when PFRS 15 is applied.

» PFRS 16, Leases. PFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance lease sheet accounting model for
lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are
optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the current standard (finance or operating lease).

PFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including PAS 17, Leases, IFRIC 4, Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15, Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC-
27, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Early
adoption is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
at or before the initial application of PFRS 16.

The Association's operating leases are low-value and short-term. The Association assesses that
the adoption of PFRS 16 will not have a significant impact on the financial statements.

* Amendments to PFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions. The IASB issued amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, that address
three main areas:



a) the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction;

b) the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features
for withholding tax obligations; and

c) accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods,
but retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other
criteria are met. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, with early application permitted.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts. The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial
instruments standard, PFRS 9, before implementing PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which
replaces PFRS 4.

The amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: i) a temporary
exemption from applying IFRS 9, and ii) an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first
applied for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. An entity may elect the
overlay approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to
financial assets designated on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative
information reflecting the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative
information when applying PFRS 9.

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Join Venture. The amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28 deal with situations
where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of
control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognized in the parent's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognized in the former parent's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier
application of the amendments is permitted. The Association does not anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact on the financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to PAS 40, Transfers of Investment Property. The amendments clarify that a
transfer to, or from, investment property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment property, supported by observable
evidence that a change in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations
other than the ones listed in PAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and that a change in use
is possible for properties under construction (i.e. a change in use is not limited to completed
properties).

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2018 with
earlier application permitted. Entities can apply the amendments either retrospectively (if
this is possible without the use of hindsight) or prospectively. Specific transition provisions
apply.



The Association anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on
the financial statements in future periods should there be a change in use of any of its
properties.

« [IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. IFRIC 22 addresses how
to determine the 'date of transaction’ for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or income, when consideration for that item
has been paid or received in advance in a foreign currency which resulted in the recognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability (e.g. a non-refundable deposit or deferred
revenue).

The Interpretation specifies that the date of transaction is the date on which the entity
initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment
or receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Interpretation requires an entity to determine the date of transaction for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration.

IFRIC 22 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with earlier
application permitted. Entities can apply the interpretation either retrospectively or
prospectively. Specific transition provisions apply to prospective application.

The Association does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements. This is because the Association already accounts
for transactions involving the payment or receipt of advance consideration in a foreign
currency in a way that is consistent with the amendments.

2.2 Current versus noncurrent classification

The Association presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as noncurrent. A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Association classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
2.3 Fair value measurement

The Association measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Also, fair
values of financial instruments measured at amortized cost are disclosed in Note 4.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or



« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Association.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Association determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Association has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.4 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held to maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Association commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described
below:

(a) Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by PAS 39. Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value presented as finance costs (negative net changes in fair
value) or finance income (positive net changes in fair value) in the statement of comprehensive
income.

The Association has financial assets at FVPL as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (Notes 4 and 9).
(b) Loans and receivables

This category is the most relevant to the Association. Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of
comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income in finance costs for loans and in general and administrative expenses for
receivables.

The category generally applies to cash and cash equivalents and receivables in the statement of
financial position (Note 4).

(c) HTM investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as HTM when the Association has the positive intention and ability to hold them to
maturity, After initial measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the
EIR, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included as finance income in the statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in finance costs.

The Association has HTM investments as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (Notes 4 and 10).
(d) AFS investments

AFS financial investments include equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL.
Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the
market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value
with unrealized gains or losses recognized as other comprehensive income and credited in the
AFS reserve until the investment is derecognized, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss is
recognized in other operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the statement of comprehensive income



in finance costs. Interest earned while holding AFS financial investments is reported as finance
income using the EIR method.

The Association evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the
near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Association is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Association may elect to reclassify these financial assets
if the Association has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that
has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity
amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of comprehensive income.

The Association has AFS financial assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (Notes 4 and 9).
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) the Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (i) the Association has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Association has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Association continues to
recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Association’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Association also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Association has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of guarantee over transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Association could be required to pay.

ii. Impairment of financial assets

The Association assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in Notes 3 and 5.
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(a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Association first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Association determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The carrying amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income (recorded as
finance income in the statement of comprehensive income) continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collaterat
has been realized or has been transferred to the Association. If, in a subsequent year, the amount
of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account.

(b) Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence of an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or of a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset.

(c) AFS investments

For AFS financial investments, the Association assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the profit or loss - is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognized in the profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Association evaluates among other factors the duration or extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the
profit or loss.
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Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the
asset, using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in
a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the profit
or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

iii. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL and other
financial liabilities. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Association’s financial liabilities comprise other financial liabilities, which include accrued
expenses and other payables and policy and contract claims payable (Note 4).

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:
(a) Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon fnitial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Association that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by PAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVPL are designated at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in PAS 39 are satisfied.

The Association does not have any liabilities held for trading nor has it designated any financial
liability as being at FVPL.

(b} Other financial liabilities

This is the category most relevant to the Association. After initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process,

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs
in the profit or loss.

This category generally applies trade and other payables, aggregate reserves and claims payable
on basic contingent benefit (Notes 15, 16 and 17).
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the profit or loss.

iv. Classification of financial instruments between debt and equity

Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument
or a component that is a financial liability is reported as expense or income.

v. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.5 Insurance contracts
Product classification

Insurance contracts under which the Association (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate the policy holders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policy holder. As a
general guideline, the Association determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risks.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains as insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during the period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

Benefits and claims

Claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, which include excess gross benefit
claims for unit-link insurance contract. Death claims, surrenders and non life insurance claims
are recorded on the basis of notifications received, Maturities are recorded when due.

Liabitity adequacy tests

At each financial reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy
of the contract liabilities net of reinsurance assets. In performing these tests, current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as
well as investment income from assets backing such liabilities are used. Any deficiency is
immediately recognized in the profit or loss.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of

three (3) months or less from dates of placements and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.
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2.7 Receivables

Receivables are recognized initially at the transaction price and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Association will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

Other receivables are also measured at initial recognition at transaction price. They are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. Bad debts are
written off when identified.

2.8 Other current assets

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are
charged to statement of comprehensive income as they are consumed in operations or expire
with the passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statement of financial position as current assets when the cost
of goods or services related to the prepayment are expected to be incurred within one year or
the Association’s normal operating cycle, whichever is longer. Otherwise, prepayments are
classified as noncurrent assets.

Other current assets are recognized when the Association expects to receive future economic
benefit from them and the amount can be measured reliably. Other assets are classified in the
statement of financial position as current assets when the cost of goods or services related to
the assets are expected to be incurred within one year or the Association’s normal operating
cycle, whichever is longer. Otherwise, other assets are classified as noncurrent assets.

2.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost. At the end of each reporting period, items
of property and equipment are measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset and the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs
of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been
recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing
asset, will flow to the Association. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expense
in the period in which those are incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of other assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Below is the estimated useful lives
used for the depreciation of property and equipment:

Property classification Estimated useful life
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvement 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful life of the office improvements
or the lease term, whichever is shorter.
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Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences at the time
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation is charged to the profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed pericdically
to ensure that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated

depreciation and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset, determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the profit or loss.

2.10 Intangible Asset

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses,

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Association’s non-financial assets such as property and equipment
are reviewed at each financial reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment or an impairment loss previously recognized no longer exists or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the Association makes a formal estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset or its cash generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable
from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For
an asset that does not generate cash flows independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and an
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Reversals of impairment are recognized
in the profit or loss.

2.12 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognized in the period in which the money or services are received or when
a legally enforceable claim against the Association is established or when the corresponding
assets and expenses are recognized/ incurred.

Accrued expenses and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accrued expenses and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer); otherwise, they are presented as noncurrent liabilities.
These are measured initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method.

-



Accrued expenses are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied
but have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with supplier. It is necessary to estimate the
amount of accrued expenses, however, the uncertainty is generally much less than for provision,

Other payables pertain to government dues and remittances.

Government dues and remittances include withholding income taxes which represent taxes
retained by the Association for an item of income required to be remitted to the BIR within one
(1) month. The obligation of the Association to deduct and withhold the taxes arises at the time
the income payment is paid or payable, or the income payment is accrued or recorded as an
expense or asset, whichever comes first. The term “payable” refers to the date the obligation
becomes due, demandable, or legaily enforceable.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method.

2.13 Liability for incurred policy benefit

A liability for incurred policy benefits relating to life insurance contracts in force is accrued when
premium revenue is recognized.

The Association's aggregate reserve for life policies, policy and contract claims payable,
applicant’s deposit and other funds and premium deposit fund are computed annually based on
the approved valuation method by the Insurance Commission (IC) and certified to by an
independent actuary.

Liability adequacy test

The Association assesses at each reporting date whether its recognized insurance liabilities are
adequate, using the current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that
assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light
of the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency shall be recognized in profit or loss.

The liability is derecognized when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.
2.14 Basic contingent benefit reserves

Basic contingent benefit reserves represent the total actuarial reserve set-up by the Association
pertaining to the basic life benefit that is in force as at the end of the accounting period. It refers
to the amount of liability which the Association establishes for a certificate to meet the
contractual obligation as it falls due.

2.15 Liability on individual fund value

Upon termination of membership, a member who has been with the Association at least three (3)
full years shall be entitled to an equity value equivalent to at least fifty percent (50%) of the
total weekly contributions collected from him.

The Association’s Board of Trustees shall set up each year sufficient reserves for the payment of
claims and other obligations in accordance with actuarial procedures approved by the Insurance
Commission. If the reserves become impaired, the Board of Trustees shall require all members’
equitable proportion of such indebtedness against the members and draw interest not exceeding
five percent (5%) per annum compounded annually.

Withdrawal from the funds of the Association, whether by check or any other instruments, is
signed by at least two (2) persons designated by the unanimous vote of the Association’s Board
of Trustees.



2.16 Optional benefit reserve

Optional benefit reserve represents the total actuarial reserve set up by the Association
pertaining to the policies under optional benefit that is in force as at the end of the accounting
period. It refers to the amount of liability which the Association establishes for an optional policy
to meet the contractual obligation as it falls due.

2.17 Claims payable on basic contingent fund

Claims payable on basic contingent fund represents the sum of the individual claims on
membership certificates that are due and have already been approved for payment but, for one
reason or another, have not actually been paid. This includes check already issued to
beneficiaries but not yet released as of the end of the financial reporting period.

2.18 Retirement obligation

Pursuant to the provision of the Republic Act 7641, all companies are required to provide
retirement benefits to all their employees, except when the Association has less than 10
employees. This employment benefit plan is a defined benefit plan because the entity's
obligation is to provide specific level of benefit for every year of services.

(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Association pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Association has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability or asset recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually using projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of all
related pension obligations.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

e Service cost

¢ Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
* Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on
non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in the statement of income. Past service
costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are
calculated periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in
the net defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is
determined by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is
recognized as expense or income in the profit or loss.



Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The cumulative gains or losses arising from the remeasurements are shown as a separate line
ftem in the statement of financial position as “remeasurement of retirement benefits
obligation”,

(b) Profit-sharing and bonuses

The Association recognizes a liability and expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Association’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Association recognizes a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.19 Fund balance

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Association after deducting all
its liabilities. This represents the accumulated earnings of the Association reduced by whatever
losses the Association may incur during a certain accounting period.

2.20 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Association has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as finance cost. When the Association expects a provision or loss to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain and its amount is estimable. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the profit or loss, net of any reimbursement,

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Association's financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote,

Contingent assets are not recognized in the Association’s financial statements but disclosed in
the notes to Association’s financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits fs probable.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Association and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

The funds of the Association are derived from membership fees, periodic dues, weekly
contributions collected from members and income from interest on savings and investments.

Premiums on policies issued directly by the Association are recognized on the effective date of
the title policy.

Contribution and fees
Members are charged a one-time thirty pesos (P30) application fee for KDCl members and one

hundred pesos (P100) for assoclate members in order to cover the expenses incurred in processing
their application. This fee is neither refundable nor included in determining the member's



accumulated and refundable contributions. Membership fees are recognized upon the admission
of a qualified member to the Association.

Members are charged twenty pesos (P20) contribution per week for the payment of death and
total disability of a member, and death of any member’s legal spouse, or any of the members’
legitimate and/or legally adopted children in accordance with the Association’s table of Life
Insurance Benefits. Twenty percent (20%) of the weekly contribution from its members is
deducted as General Administrative Funds and any balance is used for payment of mutual
benefits.

The contribution may be adjusted by the Board of Trustees as may be necessary to maintain the
funds of the Association at a level adequate to meets its benefit obligations or commitments
under the pain,

Finance income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
EIR which is the rate that exactly discounted the estimated future cash payments or receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in “Finance income”
in the profit or loss.

Other income
Income from other sources is recognized when earned.
2.22 Benefit and other expense recognition

Benefit and other expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic
benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be
measured reliably. Expenses are recognized: on the basis of a direct association between the
costs incurred and the earning of specific ftems of income; on the basis of systematic and rational
allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting
periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or
immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the
extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the
statement of financial position as an asset.

2.23 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. The Association does not have any leases under finance lease.

Association as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Association at their fair value or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Association’s statement
of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation
s0 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged directly against income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Association’s general policy on
borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expense in the period in which they are
incurred.



Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except when another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognized expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognized as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except when another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

2.24 Related parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Individuals, associates or companies that directly or indirectly control or are
controlled by or under common control with the Association are considered related parties. The
key management personnel of the Association are also considered to be related parties.

2.25 Income taxes

The Association is exempted from income tax under Section 30 (c) of the National Internal
Revenue Code as a non-stock association organized and operated exclusively for charitable and
cultural purposes no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of any
member, organizer, officer or any specific person. Interest earned from the placement of
Association funds are, however, subject to final tax. The interest income shown in the financial
statement is net of final tax.

2.26 Events after the financial reporting date

Post year-end events up to the date the financial statements were authorized for issuance that
provide additional information about the Association’s position at financial reporting date
(adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, when material.

NOTE 3 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the Association’s
management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other various
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances including expectations of
related future events, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed and evaluated on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

3.1 Judgments

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.



Determination of functional currency

The Association has determined that its functional currency is Philippine Peso. The determination
of functional currency was based on the primary economic environment in which the Association
generates and expends cash.

Classification of financial instruments

The Association classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as
a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance
of the contractual agreement and the guidelines set by PAS 39 on the definitions of a financial
asset, a financial liability or equity. In addition, the Association also determines and evaluates
its intention and ability to keep the investments until its maturity date.

The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, and the management’s
intention and ability to hold the financial instrument to maturity generally governs its
classification in the statement of financial position.

The classification of financial assets and liabilities is presented in Note 4.
Determination of fair value of financial instruments

The Association determines significant components of fair value measurement using verifiable
objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and volatility rates), timing and
the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Association utilized a different valuation
methodology. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and financial liabilities would
affect profit and loss and equity.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
P169,921,464 and P163,107,539 and P117,687,455 and P105,811,687, respectively, as disclosed
in Note 4.

Estimates and assumptions
Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment

The Association reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on
the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is possible that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A reduction in
the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded depreciation
expense and decrease the related asset accounts. The estimated useful lives of property and
equipment are discussed in Note 2.9 to the financial statements, which showed no changes in
2017 and 2016.

The Association has entered into leases with various lessors. Based on the evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the
properties remain with the lessor. Accordingly, the Association accounted for the leases as
operating leases.

Impairment of financial assets

The Association assesses impairment on financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of financial asset may not be recoverable. The
determination of impairment losses for financial assets requires material estimates, including the
amount and timing of expected recoverable future cash flows. These estimates may change
significantly from time to time, depending on available information.

Management believes that the carrying amounts of financial assets approximate their recoverable
amounts,



Impairment of non-financial assets

The Association assesses at the end of each reporting date whether there is an indication that
the carrying amounts of all non-financial assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Association makes an estimate
of the asset's recoverable amount. At the end of each reporting date, the Association assesses
whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.

Management has reviewed the carrying values of the Association's non-financial assets as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 for impairment. Based on the management’s assessment, there
were no indications that the non-financial assets were impaired, thus no impairment loss was
recognized for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Estimation of liability for retirement benefits

The determination of the Association’s obligation and cost of pension and other pension benefits
is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts Those assumptions are described in Note 2 and include, among others, discount rate and
salary increase rate.

In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions used are accumulated
and amortized over future period and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and
recorded obligation in such future periods.

Based on the actuarial valuation, the pension liability amounted to P823,244 and P588,531 as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (Note 20).

NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table sets forth the carrying value of financial instruments held by category:

2017 2016
Carrying
Carrying Values Fair Values Values Fair Values
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 6) P62,529,821 P62,529,821 P56,953,300  P56,953,300
Receivables (Note 7) 4,860,036 4,860,036 3,828,671 3,828,671
Rental deposit (Note 14) 100,040 100,040 90,945 90,945
Other funds and deposits
(Note 14) 162,461 162,461 162,461 162,461
Available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) 15,590,740 15,590,740 15,393,796 15,393,796
Held-to-maturity investments
(Note 10) 86,678,366 86,678,366 86,678,366 86,678,366
P169,921,464 P169,921,464 P163,107,539  P163,107,539




Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables*

{Note 15) P980,006 P980,006 P941,909 P941,909
Liability on individual

equity value (Note 16) 72,138,994 72,138,994 67,304,401 67,304,401
Aggregate reserve for trust

liability - RF (Note 16) 43,064,176 43,064,176 36,130,189 36,130,189
Basic contingent benefit

reserve (Note 16) 288,711 288,711 200,509 200,509

Optional benefit reserve

(Note 16) 824,479 824,479 748,406 748,406

Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit (Note

17) 389,909 389,909 486,273 486,273

P117,686,275 P117,686,275 P105,811,687 P105,811,687

“Trade and other payables excludes government dues amounting to P103,767 and P5,912 as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, trade and other payables,
liability on individual equity value, aggregate reserve for trust liability, basic contingent benefit
reserve and claims payable on basic contingent benefit approximate its fair values due to the
relatively short-term maturities of the financial instruments.

Items of income, expense, gains or losses recognized from financial instruments are as follows:

2017 2016
Finance income (Notes 6, 9 and 10) P4,691,796 P4,420,930
Unrealized gain (loss) on change in fair value of
Available-for-sale (Note 9) 196,944 (222,105)
P4,888,740 P4,198,825

NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIE2S
General objectives, policies and processes

The BOT has overall responsibility for the determination of the Association's risk management
objectives and policies and, while retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the
authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the
objectives and policies to the Association's finance function. The BOT receives monthly reports
from the Association’s Finance Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness of the processes
put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets.

The overall objective of the BOT is to set polices that seek to reduce risk as far as possible
without unduly affecting the Association's competitiveness and flexibility.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Association is exposed to a variety of financial risks, which result from its operating, investing
and financing activities. The Association’s principal financial instruments comprise of Cash and
cash equivalents, receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments,
liability on individual equity value, aggregate reserve for trust liability, basic contingent benefit
reserve, optional benefit reserve, claims payable on basic contingent benefit and accrued and
other payables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Association’s operations. The Association has various other financial assets and tiabilities which
arise directly from operations.



Association policies and guidelines cover credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The objective
of financial risk management is to contain, where appropriate, exposures in these financial risks
to limit any negative impact on the Association’s results and financial position. The Association
actively measures, monitors and manages its financial risk exposures by various functions
pursuant to the segregation of duties principles.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The receivablie balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the Association’s exposure to impairment is not significant.

Member credit risk is managed by managing and analyzing the credit risk for each new member
before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Outstanding receivables
are regularly monitored. The credit quality of the Association’s financial assets that are neither

past due nor impaired is considered to be good quality and expected to be collectible without
incurring any credit losses.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by ensuring that the Association’ deposit
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counterparties.

The Association’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of other counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts as follows:

2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents* (Note 6) P62,522,821 P56,946,300
Receivables (Note 7) 4,860,036 3,828,671
Other funds and deposits (Note 14) 162,461 162,461
Rental deposit (Note 14) 100,040 90,945
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 9) 15,590,740 15,393,796
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 10) 86,678,366 86,678,366

P169,914,464 P163,100,539

*Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash on hand amounting to both P7,000 as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.



The following table provides an analysis of the age of the financial assets that are past due but
not impaired and those financial assets that are individually determined to be impaired as at the
end of the reporting period:

December 31, 2017

Neither
Impaired nor
past due Past due but not yet impaired
More
91 to than
1to 60 61 to 90 120 120
Total Current days days days days  Impaired
Loans and
receivables
Cash and cash
equivalents
(Note 6) P62,522,821 P62,522,821 P- P- P- P- P-
Receivables
(Note 7) 4,860,036 3,320,132 1,343,104 196,800 - - -
Rental deposit
(Note 14) 100,040 100,040 - - - - -
Other funds and
deposits
(Note 14) 162,461 162,461 - - - - -
Available-for-sale
financial assets
{Note 9) 15,590,740 15,590,740 - - - - -
Held-to-maturity
investments
(Note 10) 86,678,366 86,678,366 - - - - -
P169,914,464 P168,374,560 P1,343,104 P196,800 P« P- P-
December 31, 2016
Neither
Impaired nor
past due Past due but not yet impaired
More
1to60 61 to 91t than 120
Total Current days 90 days 120 days days Impaired
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash
equivalents
(Note 6) P56,946,300  P56,946,300 P- P- P- P- P-
Receivables (Note 7) 3,828,671 2,343,667 1,146,011 52,364 286,629 . .
Rental deposit
(Note 14) 90,945 90,945 - - . - -
Other funds and
deposits (Note 14) 162,461 162,461 - - -
Available-for-sale
financial assets
(Note 9) 15,393,796 15,393,796 - . . - *
Held-to-maturity
investments
(Note 10) 86,678,366 86,678,366 . - . - 2
P163,100,539 P161,615,535 P1,146,011 P52,364 P286,629 P- P-

The credit quality of the Association’s financial assets is evaluated using internal credit rating.
Financial assets are considered as high grade if the counter parties are not expected to default
in settling their obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. These counter parties include
banks, related parties and members who pay on or before due date.



Credit quality per class of financial assets
The Association’s bases in grading its financial assets are as follows:

High grade - These are receivables which have a high probability of collection (the counterparty
has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the receivables are readily
enforceable).

Standard - These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay but have been outstanding for a certain period of
time,

Substandard - These are receivables that can be collected provided the Association makes
persistent effort to collect them.

The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets (gross of allowance for credit
losses) of the Association based on their historical experience with the corresponding third parties
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard  Substandard Past Due but
High Grade Grade Grade  Unrated Not Impaired Impaired Total
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash
equivalents (Note 6) P62,522,821 P- P- P- P- P- P62,522,821
Receivables (Note 7) 3,320,132 - - - 1,539,904 - 4,860,036
Rental deposit (Note 14) 100,040 - - - - - 100,040
Other funds and deposits
(Note 14) 162,461 - - . - - 162,461
Available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) 15,590,740 - - - - - 15,590,740
Held-to-maturity
investments (Note 10) 86,678,366 - - - - - 86,678,366
P168,374,560 p- P- P- P1,539,904 P169,914,464
2016
Neither Past Due nor impaired
Stancard  Substandard Past Due but
High Grade Grade Grade _ Unrated Not Impaired Impaired Total
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 6) P56,946,300 P- P- P- P- P-  P56,946,300
Receivables (Note 7) P2,343,667 . - P- 1,485,004 P- P3,828,671
Rental deposit (Note 14) 90,945 - - - - - 90,945
Other funds and deposits
(Note 14) 162,461 - . - . - 162,461
Available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) 15,393,796 . - . - . 15,393,796
Held-to-maturity
investments (Note 10) 86,678,366 - . - - - B6,678,366
P161,615,535 P- p- P- P1,485,004 P- P163,100,539
Impairment assessment

Impairment losses are recognized based on the results of specific (individual) and collective
assessment of credit exposures. Impairment has taken place when there is a presence of known
difficulties in the payments of obligation by counterparties. This and other factors, either singly
or in tandem with other factors, constitute observable events or data that meet the definition of
objective evidence of impairment.

The Association applied specific (individual) assessment methodology in assessing and measuring
impairment,
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Specific (individual) assessment

The Association determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant loan on
an individual basis. Items considered when determining amounts of allowances include payment
and collection history, timing of expected cash flows and realizable value of collateral, if any.

The Association sets criteria for specific loan impairment testing and uses the discounted cash
flow method to compute for impairment loss. Accounts subjected to specific impairment and are
found to be impaired shall be excluded from the collective impairment computation.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Association will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as these fall due and lack of funding to finance its growth and capital expenditures
and working capital requirements.

The Association’s approach to manage its liquidity profile are to ensure that adequate funding is
available at all times; to meet commitments as these arise without incurring unnecessary costs;
and to be able to access funding when needed.

The following summarizes the maturity profile of the Association’s non-derivative financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

December 31, 2017
Lessthan 3to 12 1to5

On demand 3 months months years Total
Trade and other payables (Note
15) P980,006 P- P- P- P980,006
Liability on individual equity
value (Note 16) 4,064,147 - - - 4,064,147
Aggregate reserve for trust
liability (Note 16) 6,865,887 - - - 6,865,887
Basic contingent benefit
reserve (Note 16) 288,711 - - - 288,711
Optional benefit reserve (Note 16) 824,479 - - - 824,479
Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit (Note 17) 389,909 - - - 389,909
P13,413,139 P- P- P- P13,413,139
December 31, 2016
Less
than 3 3to12
Ondemand  months months 1 to 5 years Total
Trade and other payables (Note 15) P941,909 P- P- P- P941,909
Liability on individual equity
value (Note 16) 3,922,456 - - - 3,922,456
Aggregate reserve for trust
llability (Note 16) 6,854,684 - - - 6,854,684
Basic contingent benefit
reserve (Note 16) 200,509 - - - 200,509
Optional benefit reserve (Note 16) 748,406 . - - 748,406
Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit (Note 17) 486,273 - - - 486,273

P10,154,237 P- P- P-  P10,154,237

“an



Market risks

Market risk refers to the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and other market prices will affect the Association's income or the value of its
holdings of financial statements. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Association is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in interest. There
has been no change to the Association’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Interest rate risks

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Association's capital management is to ensure its ability to continue
as a going concern and that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Association’s BOT has the overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk.
Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Association's external environment
and the risks underlying the Association’s business operations and industry.

The Association monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio, which is calculated as
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is equivalent to total liabilities shown in the
statement of financial position. Total equity comprises all components of equity including share
capital and related earnings.

2017 2016
Debt P118,613,286 P106,406,130
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) (62,529,821) (56,953,300)
Net Debt 56,083,465 49,452,830
Equity 70,883,952 58,683,616
Net debt to equity ratio 1:0.79 1:0.84

There were no changes in the Association's approach to capital management during the year.
Margin of Solvency (MOS)

The Association is required to maintain at all times an MOS for life insurance business of P500,000
or P2.00 per thousand of the total amount of its insurance in force as of the preceding calendar
year on all policies, except term insurance, whichever is higher.

The MOS shall be the excess of the value of its admitted assets (as defined under the IC Code),
exclusive of its paid-up capital, over the amount of its liabilities, unearned premiums and
reinsurance reserves. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association’s MOS based on its
calculations amounted to P170,188,250 and P147,704,483, respectively. The final amount of the
MOS can be determined only after the accounts of the Association have been examined by the IC
specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as defined under the same Code.



The surplus available for MOS for the Association follows:

2017 2016
Admitted assets P187,199,000 P162,488,805
Admitted liabilities 118,613,286 106,406,130
Net worth P68,584,714 P56,082,675

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the estimated non-admitted assets of the Association’s life
operations, as defined under the Code, which are included in the accompanying statements of
financial position follows:

2017 2016
Software and system development 1,209,732 P1,219,366
Receivables 687,095 559,976
Other current assets 218,248 340,429
Other noncurrent assets 100,039 253,406
Transportation equipment 39,993 134,899
Office furniture and fixture 43,131 92,865
Total non-admitted assets P2,298,238 P2,600,941

If an insurance Association fails to meet the minimum required MOS, the IC is authorized to
suspend or revoke all certificates of authority granted to such companies, its officers and agents,
and no new business shall be done by and for such Association until its authority is restored by
the IC.

Price risk

The Association’s price risk exposure at year-end relates to financial assets and liabilities whose
values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, principally, AFS financial assets.
Such investment securities are subject to the price risk due to changes in market values of
instruments arising either from factors specific to individual instruments or their issuers or factors
affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Association’s investments are regulated under the pertinent provisions of Presidential Decree
No. 612, otherwise known as The Insurance Code of the Philippines. The Insurance Code generally
requires all insurance companies to obtain prior approval of the IC for any and all of their
investments. It further requires companies to submit to the IC a monthly report on all investments
made during the previous month. The IC reviews the investments and may suggest or require the
immediate sale or disposal of investments deemed too risky.

For equity investments, Section 200 of the Insurance Code further provides, among other things
that insurance companies may only invest in shares of Philippine corporations which have prior
three-year dividend payment record. Moreover, the same section limits exposure to any one
institution equal to 10% of an insurer’s total admitted assets.

The following table shows the equity impact of reasonable possible change in the fair values of
the Association's investments as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (all other variables held
constant), respectively.



2017 2016

Effect of Total Effect of Total
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Volatility Income Volatility Income
AFS financial 1% 11,459 1% 11,314
assets
-1% (11,459) 1% (11,314)
Guaranty fund

As a mutual benefit association, the IC also requires the Association to possess a guaranty fund
of P5.00 million. This minimum amount shall be maintained at all times and it must be increased
by an amount equivalent to 5% of the Association’s gross premium collections until the guaranty
fund reaches 12.5% of the minimum paid up capital for domestic life insurance companies or
P125.00 million. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association has a total of P21,995,687
and P19,975,538 representing guaranty fund which is deposited with the IC.

NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The account consists of:

2017 2016
Cash on hand P7,000 P7,000
Cash in banks 15,214,926 20,707,715
Cash equivalents 47,307,895 36,238,585
P62,529,821 P56,953,300

Cash and cash equivalents earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest earned in
2017 and 2016 amounted to P194,158 and P130,606, respectively.

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

The account consists of:
2017 2016

Unremitted member’s contribution dues and fees (Note 19) P3,176,595 P2,835,175
Unremitted premiums (Note 19) 503,845 433,520
Accrued interest income 492,502 502,468
Receivable KDCI Inc. 290,495 2,681
Advances to employees 152,875 10,000
Due from officers and employees 53,779 44 452
Other receivables 189,945 375

P4,860,036 P3,828,671

Unremitted members' contributions, dues and fees represents amount collected by partner
individual/ fnstitutions on membership certificates but not yet remitted as at the end of the
financial reporting period.

Unremitted premium represents gross premiums collected by partner individuals/institutions on
all optional policies but not yet remitted as at the end of the financial reporting period.

Based on management’s evaluation, the Association’s receivables are fully collectible, thus, no
allowance for impairment is necessary as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.



NOTE 8 -OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The account consists of:
2017 2016
Prepaid expenses P130,532 P102,347
Unused supplies 87,716 238,082
P218,248 P340,429
NOTE 9 -AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
The account consists of:
2017
No. of Acquisition
Shares Cost Fair Value
Petron preferred shares series 2A 8,000 P8,000,000 P8,480,000
Save and learned fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,205,193
Sun life prosperity GS fund 1,229,861 2,000,000 1,905,547
P15,000,000 P15,590,470
2017
No. of Acquisition
Shares Cost Fair Value
Petron preferred shares series 2A 8,000 P8,000,000 P8,360,000
Save and learned fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,180,765
Sun life prosperity GS fund 1,229,861 2,000,000 1,853,031
P15,000,000 P15,393,796

Unrealized gain (loss) recognized in the statements of comprehensive income in 2017 and 2016

amounted to P196,944 and (P222,105), respectively.

Interest earned in 2017 and 2016 amounted to P718,335 and P726,801, respectively.

NOTE 10 -HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

The account consists of:

2017 2016
Government security P66,178,366 P66,178,366
Corporate bond 20,500,000 20,500,000
P86,678,366 P86,678,366

In 2016, the Association acquired additional investments amounting to P11,000,000.

Interest earned in 2017 and 2016 amounted to P3,779,303 and P3,563,523, respectively. Interest

rates on these investments range from 3.25% to 8.125%.



NOTE 11 - ADVANCES TO CONTRACTOR

The amount of advances to contractor recognized amounted to nil and P1,129,366 as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. This pertains to the Association’s payment to its
contractor for their services to work on an information system for insurance management.

In 2017, the advances to contractor was reclassified to computer software (Note 13).
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There are neither restrictions on the title on the Association's property and eguipment nor any
of them are pledged as security for any of its liabilities.

In 2016, the Association sold two of its computer equipment. Proceeds from sale of these assets
amounted to P6,053. Gain on sale recognized in the statements of comprehensive income
amounted to P3,609,

The Association acquired a lot in 2017. The Association intends to construct a building on this lot,
a portion of which will be used as the principal place of business and the rest will be available
for lease. The cost of the land amounted to P16,267,097.

The cost of fully depreciated assets still being used in the operation of the Association amounted
to P599,096 and P636,925 as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Based on management’s assessment, there is no indication of impairment and the carrying
amount of property and equipment can be recovered through continuous use in operations.

NOTE 13 - COMPUTER SOFTWARE, NET

The details of and movements in this account are presented below:

Cost

January 1, 2016 P-
Additions -
December 31, 2016 -
Reclassification (Note 11) 1,219,366
Additions 112,449
December 31, 2017 1,331,815
Accumulated amortization

January 1, 2016 P-
Amortization (Note 22) -
December 31, 2016 -
Amortization (Note 22) 122,083
December 31, 2017 122,083
Net book value

December 31, 2017 P1,209,732
December 31, 2016 P-

Management believes that there is no indication that an impairment loss has occurred on its
computer software as at December 31, 2017.



NOTE 14 - OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

The account consists of:

2017 2016
Other funds and deposits P162,461 P162,461
Rental deposit (Note 23) 100,040 90,945
P262,501 P253,406

Other funds and deposits pertains to the Association’s contribution under Microinsurance MBA

Association of the Philippines.

NOTE 15 - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The account consists of:

2017 2016
Accounts payable P764,529 P697,328
Accrued expenses 215,477 244,581
Government dues 103,767 5,912
P1,083,773 P947,821

Accounts payable pertains to collection fees.

Accrued expenses pertain to expenses incurred but not yet paid such as legal and professional fees,

and operating cost incurred by the Association.

Other payables pertain to government dues and remittances. Government dues and remittances
represent contributions of employees that will be remitted to various government agencies such as
5SS, Philhealth and Pag-ibig. It also includes taxes withheld from salaries of employees and income

payment to suppliers, which will be remitted in the subsequent month.

NOTE 16 - AGGREGATE RESERVES

The account consists of:

2017 2016
Liability on individual equity value P72,138,994 P67,304,401
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - Reserved Funds (RF) 43,064,176 36,130,189
Basic contingent benefit reserve 288,711 200,509
Optional benefit reserve 824,479 748,406
P116,316,360 P104,383,505
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2017 2016

Breakdown:
Current portion
Liability on individual equity value P4,064,147 3,922,456
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - RF 6,865,887 6,854,684
Noncurrent portion
Liability on individual equity value 68,074,847 63,381,945
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - RF 36,198,289 29,275,505

Liability on individual equity value represents the total amount of obligations set up by the
Association on membership certificates pertaining to 50% equity value, as required under the
Insurance Code, and any incremental amount declared by the Association.

Aggregate reserve for trust liability is weekly contribution of five pesos, which shall be credited
to the fund for the account of the member. The calculations of the aggregate reserves are based
on reasonable actuarial assumptions and are in accordance with generally accepted actuarial
principles.

NOTE 17 - CLAIMS PAYABLE ON BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT

The account consists of incurred but not reported claims amounting to P389,909 and P486,273 as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

NOTE 18 - FUND BALANCE

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Association after deducting all

its liabilities. This represents the accumulated earnings of the MBA reduced by whatever losses
the Association may incur during a certain accounting period.

Restricted Unrestricted
fund balance fund balance Total
Balance at January 1, 2016 P20,304,408 P22,225,190 P42,529,598
Movement during the year 2,672,629 13,481,389 16,154,018
Balance at December 31, 2016 22,977,037 35,706,579 58,683,616
Movement during the year 12,134,489 65,847 12,200,336
Balance at December 31, 2017 P35,111,526 P35,772,426 P70,883,952

Restricted fund is composed of guaranty fund, benefits in kind and other relevant services,
enhancement of equity value fund, capacity building, continuing member’s education, education
and training fund, hospital assistance fund, research and development fund and computer
software maintenance. Education and training fund refers to the amount allocated by the
Association for education and training of its members, officers and staff, Education and training
fund includes the amount of payment to Kasagana-ka Development Center that represents
collection fees.



The restricted fund of the Association is composed of the following:

2017 2016

Guaranty fund P21,995,687 P19,975,537
Benefits in kind and other relevant services 5,600,000 2,771,500
Enhancement of equity value 2,250,000 -
Capacity building fund 2,000,000 -
Continuing member's education fund 1,650,289 -
Education and training fund 712,884 -
Hospital assistance fund 352,666 -
Research and development 300,000 230,000
Software maintenance 250,000 -

P35,111,526 P22,977,037

A Mutual Benefit association shall only maintain free and unassigned surplus of not more than
twenty percent (20%) of its total liabilities as verified by the Commissioner. Any amount in excess
shall be returned to the members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or providing
benefits in kind and other relevant services. In addition, subject to the approval of the
Commissioner, a mutual benefit association may allocate a portion for capacity building and
research and development such as developing new products and services, upgrading and
improving operating system and equipment and continuing member education.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association’s excess Unrestricted
Fund Balance from twenty percent (20%) of liabilities are as follows:

Excess of unrestricted fund

Unrestricted fund balance Total liabilities 20% of liabilities balance from 20% of liabilities

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2017
P35,772,426 P118,613,286 P23,722,657 P12,049,769

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2016
P35,483,562 P106,388,386 P21,277,677 P14,205,885

NOTE 19 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of its business, the Association transacts with its related parties. These
principally consist of collection of membership and premium contribution and non-interest
bearing advances for certain expenses. Other transactions are based on terms agreed to by the
parties.

Kabuhayan sa Ganap na Kasarinlan Credit & Savings Cooperative (KCOOP) is a cooperative duly
registered under the Cooperative Development Authority on February 2016. It is the fourth
organization under the Kasagana- ka Synergizing Organizations. Since the Association was
established primarily to answer the member’s need for a viable microinsurance program,
members of the Association are also members of KCOOP. The Association continues to take
advantage of KCOOP's infrastructure to engage its growing membership and collect premium
payments,



Nature of the related party

Name of related party Relationship transaction

Funds Assigned for Member's
Kabuhayan sa Ganap Na Kasarinlan Credit KCOOP partner Benefits (Fund Balance
and Savings Cooperative (KCOOP) Account)

The following summarizes the Association's related party transactions:

Additions
Unremitted Contribution Dues and Fees during the  Payment /
2016 year Collections 2017
Affiliate
KCOOP P2,835,175 P3,176,595 P2,835,175 P3,176,595
Additions
Unremitted Premiums during the  Payment /
2016 year Collections 2017
Affiliate
KCooP P433,520 P503,845 P433,520 P503,845

Details of the Association’s related party transactions follow:

a. The Association will collect from KCOOP members' contributions on member
certificates that will be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period.

b. The Association will collect from KCOOP gross premiums on all opticnal policies that
will be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period.

The outstanding balances with related parties as at December 31 are as follows:

Nature of
consideration to
be provided Details of
Terms and upon guarantees given Impairment
conditions  Security settlement or received Loss
2017 2016
Unremitted
Contribution
Dues and
Fees (Note 7) P3,716,595 P2,835,175 Demandable Unsecured Cash None None
Unremitted
Premiums
(Note 7) 503,855 433,520 Demandable  Unsecured Cash None None

NOTE 20 - RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Association has a noncontributory, defined benefit plan covering all its officers and regular
employees. Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
is computed based on provision of PAS 19 (Amended). The principal actuarial assumptions used
to determine the funding of the trust fund is accrued benefit actuarial cost method which take
into account the factors of investment, mortality, disability, and salary projection rates.

In 2017, the Association engaged Asian Actuaries, Inc. to prepare an actuarial valuation of the
Association’s retirement liability. The actuarial report is dated March 19, 2018 covering valuation
dates period January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017. The effects of the valuation are shown
below.
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The amounts recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

2017 2016
Present value of the obligation P1,032,991 P1,043,972
Fair value of plan assets (479,747) (455,441)
Defined benefit obligation P823,244 P588,531

The retirement benefit cost recognized in the statements of comprehensive income as follows
(Note 22):

Current service cost
Interest cost

a. Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

The movement in the defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Present value of the obligation at January 1

Current service cost
Interest cost
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income
Loss (gain) in defined benefit obligation from
changes in financial assumptions
Gain in defined benefit obligation due to

experience

Present value of the obligation at December 31

Fair value of plan assets at January 1

Contributions paid
Expected return
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income

Loss in defined benefit obligation due to

experience
Fair value of plan assets at December 31

Present value of the obligation, net at
December 31
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2017 2016
P187,891 P172,939
30,834 28,109
P218,725 P201,048
2017 2016
P1,043,972 P919,927
187,891 172,939
54,694 47,310
64,807 (16,052)
(48,373) (80,152)
259,019 124,045
P1,302,991 P1,043,972
455,441 P293,688
- 160,296
23,860 19,201
446 (17,744)
24,306 161,753
P479,747 P455,441
P823,244 P588,531




b. Remeasurements in other comprehensive income

Remeasurements in other comprehensive income represent actuarial gains and losses which are

presented at net of related deferred tax as shown below:

Actuarial gain (loss) recognized, net

¢, Actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2017

2016

(P15,998)

P78,460

The principal assumptions used in determining pension liability of the Association are shown below:

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increases

NOTE 21 - REVENUE

The account consists of:
Gross member’s contribution
Gross premium

Membership fees
Miscellaneous income

2017 2016
4.89% 5.24%
5% 5%

2017 2016
P33,454,999 P32,004,443
6,947,984 6,297,905
698,190 752,350
245,705 715,866
P41,346,878 P39,770,564

Miscellaneous income is composed of other income from K-Kalinga and income other than

contribution, premiums and membership fees.

42



NOTE 22 - OPERATING EXPENSES

The account consists of:

Salaries, wages and benefits
Representation and entertainment
Transportation and travel allowance
Technical and professional fees
Meeting and conferences

Rental (Note 23)

Office supplies

Professional and technical development
Depreciation (Note 12)

Research and development
Retirement benefit cost (Note 20)
Meals

MBA Dues

Amortization (Note 13)

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance

Taxes, licenses and fees

Annual general assembly
Reinsurance premium

Insurance

Investment Management Fees
Marketing, advertising and promotions
Medicine

Donations and contributions

Bank and other charges

Social and community service
Miscellaneous

NOTE 23 - LEASE AGREEMENT

2017 2016
P3,437,639 P3,157,936
819,541 664,280
536,097 620,010
462,682 318,447
425,823 471,949
424,772 325,799
374,717 369,353
339,665 221,959
303,216 327,595
237,286 159,649
218,725 201,048
207,290 =
152,184 .
122,083 -
108,853 98,441
91,315 100,549
71,475 162,976
44,550 329,233
35,050 32,650
21,183 25,119
12,000 .
9,353 199,598
3,849 -
3,319 34,000
1,305 900
- 120,000
27,052 21,927
P8,491,024 P7,963,418

The Association entered into two operating lease agreements for the lease of Units 501 and 504
for the period of two (2) years from February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2018 and from May 1, 2016
to April 30, 2018, respectively. Total monthly rentals of P30,315 for both units shall be paid on
the first year of the lease agreement and shall increase to P33,346 on the second year.

Relative to the lease agreements, the Association paid security deposit amounting to P100,040
and P90,945 as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (Note 14).

Rent expense recognized in 2017 and 2016 amounted to P424,772 and P325,799, respectively

(Note 22).

The future lease payments under the operating lease will be as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than two years

2017 2016
P89,523 P381,969
. 89,523
P89,523 PA471,492




NOTE 24 - INCOME TAX EXEMPTION

The Association is exempted from income tax under Section 30 (c) of the National Internal
Revenue Code as a non-stock association organized and operated exclusively for charitable and
cultural purposes and no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of
any member, organizer, officer or any specific person. Interest earned from the placement of
Association funds are, however, subject to final tax. The interest income shown in the financial
statement is net of final tax.

NOTE 25 - RECLASSIFICATION

Certain account reclassification was made to conform to 2017 financial statements presentation.
The effects of the reclassifications relative to 2016 financial statements are summarized below:

Before After
Account reclassification Reclassification reclassification
Monitoring P129,345 (a)(P129,345) P-
Transportation and travel
allowance 490,665 (a)129,345 620,010

a) To reclassify monitoring expense to transportation and travel allowance.

The reclassification has no effect on the reported total expenses or net assets for the period
reported. Accordingly, the management did not present a statement of financial position at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period.

NOTE 26 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
(BIR)

A. REVENUE REGULATIONS (RR) NO. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 which prescribes additional procedural
and/or documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial
statements accompanying the tax returns. Under the said RR, companies are required to
disclose, in addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS and such other standards and/or
conventions that may heretofore be adopted, in the Notes to the Financial Statements,
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year. In
compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010 hereunder are the information on
taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year,

1. The amount of VAT output tax declared during the year and the account title and
amount/s upon which the same was based

The Association’s revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2. The amount of VAT Input taxes claimed

The Association’s revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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3. The landed costs of imports and the amount of custom duties and tariff fees paid or
accrued thereon

The Association did not have any importations in 2017 and 2016 that would require for the
payment of customs duties and tariff fees.

4. The amount of excise taxes classified per major product category

The Association did not have any transactions in 2017 and 2016 which are subject to excise
tax.

5. Documentary stamp tax (DST)

The Assocfation did not have any transactions in 2017 and 2016 which are subject to
documentary stamp tax.

6. Taxes and licenses

a. Local
Duties and taxes P8,076
Business Permit 11,423
Others 51,976
P71,475
7. Withholding taxes
The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to:
a. Withholding tax on salaries P375,551

8. Periods covered and amounts of deficiency tax assessments, whether protested or not

The Association has not yet received a final assessment notice from the Regional Office covering
the taxable year December 31, 2016 amounting to NIL, inclusive of penalties, for deficiency

income/VAT/Percentage/withholding tax, which has been protested/agreed upon.

Tax cases, and amounts involved, under preliminary investigation, litigation and/or

prosecution in courts or bodies outside the BIR

The Association has no RATE case under preliminary investigation of the Dept. of Justice (DOJ)

involving deficiency income tax for taxable year 2016 amount to NIL.

ar



B. REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 19-2011

RR No. 19-2011 was issued on December 9, 2011 to prescribe the new BIR forms that will be
used for Income Tax filing covering and starting with Calendar Year 2011, and to modify Revenue
Memorandum Circular No. 57-2011. Pursuant to Section 244 in relation to Sections 6(H),
51(A)(1), and 51(A)(2) of the National Internal Revenue Code of 1997 (Tax Code), as amended,
these Regulations prescribed to revise BIR Form Nos. 1700, 1701 and 1702 to reflect the changes
in information requested from the said BIR Forms and to enable the said forms to be read by an
Optical Character Reader. Under the Guidelines and Instructions of BIR Form No. 1702 - Page
4, the following schedules are prescribed under existing revenue issuances which must form
part of the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements:

1. Revenue

Exempt Regular rate
Gross Member’'s Contribution P34,454,999 P-
Gross Premium 6,947,984 -
Membership Fees 698,190 -
Miscellaneous Income 245,705 -

P41,346,878 -

2. Benefit expense

Exempt Regular rate
Benefit/claims expenses - BLIP P6,721,911 P-
Benefit/claims expenses - CLIP 1,405,665 -
Benefit/claims expenses - Equity value 3,744,638
Allocation for liability on individual equity 12,982,861 -
Increase/(decrease) in reserve for basic contingent fund (7,423) -
Increase/(decrease) in reserve for optional benefit 75,514 -
Increase/(decrease) in liability on individual equity (8,112,030) -
Increase/(decrease) in aggregate reserve for trust

liability 786,748 -
Other expenses for members 2,121,548 -
Collection fees 3,872,889 -
Total benefit expense P23,592,321 P-

The Association does not have expenses arising from revenue subject to regular rate tax.

3. Non-Operating and Taxable Other Income

The Association did not have any other income in 2017 and 2016 which are subject to tax.

4. Taxes and licenses

a. Local
Duties and taxes P8,076
Business Permit 11,423
Others 51,976
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5. Operating expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits P3,437,639
Representation and entertainment 819,541
Technical and professional fees 462,682
Meeting and conferences 425,823
Rental 424,772
Office supplies 374,717
Professional and technical development 339,665
Transportation and travel allowance 536,097
Depreciation 303,216
Research and development 237,286
Retirement benefit cost 218,725
Meals 207,290
MBA Dues 152,184
Amortization 122,083
Utilities 108,853
Repairs and maintenance 91,315
Taxes, licenses and fees 71,475
Annual general assembly 44,550
Reinsurance premium 35,050
Insurance 21,183
Investment Management Fees 12,000
Marketing, advertising and promotions 9,353
Medicine 3,849
Donations and contributions 3,319
Bank and other charges 1,305
Social and community service -
Miscellaneous 27,052

P8,491,024
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